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Corporate Profile

Newly Constructed Houses in Huanan New City

R AR B E

Hopson Development Holdings Limited EERREEERAQA

is one of the premier property development and EHEAEEENMEERRIKRENAZ

investment companies in Mainland China and is — EERAFRNMREZRERN EXE
renowned for its large-scale and quality residential ROEETHEEMEZEAEEB - AEEERE —
projects in fast-growing districts. The Group has an EHMELAE BEAREEEIEER
excellent property portfolio with an aggregate attributable 4,215,000 73 K e

gross floor area of over 4,215,000 sq.m..
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Financial Highlights
Year ended 31st December 2001 2000 1999 1998
BZ+-B=1t-HLEE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THET THET
Turnover B 1,170,871 1,198,378 1,328,513 1,303,332
Profit before taxation BR %% B 5 ) 215,880 240,383 475,332 485,196
Taxation HE (90,891) (86,195) (162,857) (158,138)
Profit after taxation but B EERTLE
before minority interests BE R 2 A 124,989 154,188 312,475 327,058
Minority interests DR R (4,024) 6,676 (23,564) (16,380)
Profit attributable to
shareholders PR FE A i A 120,965 160,864 288,911 310,678
Earnings per share BREM
- Basic —BEAR HK12 centsi& fll | HK16 centsB 1l HK29 centsBfll  HK35 centsi#
- Diluted — 8 HK12 centsi& fll | HK16 centsB 1l HK28 centsB{ll  HK34 centsi# 1l
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Breakdowns of property sales and landbank (inclusive of Regal Riviera)

for the year under review:

REBEFERN HEVMERLHREE (BEKRKITR) 29!

Sales Area Breakdown by Projects

SHEEE (REE )

Sales Value Breakdown by Projects

HEH (REE )

Gallopade Park South Court
BRIEE MM 20.4%

Pleasant View Garden

BERE 12.3%

Gallopade Park
BETE 11.6%

Huajing New City,
ERHR 25.7%

Regal Court
BRI 18.3%

Others
Hih 11.7%

Total #8%t: 285,803 sq.m. F /52K

Gallopade Park South Court
BRIEE M 15.7%
Pleasant View Gardan
BEER 7.5%
Gallopade Park
RIEE 11.5%
Huajing New City
ESHM 25.7%
Regal Court
=L 30%
Others
At 9.6%

-

Total #&5t: HK$1,180,097,000% T

Landbank Breakdown by Districts
LR (R & 5t)

Landbank Breakdown by Usage

T B (RAE)

Tianhe
A 39.8%

Panyu

B 32.1%

Haizhu
BIE 26.9%

Others
HAth 1.2%

Residential
E=% 75.1%

Carpark
=55 8.7%

Retail
=% 6.9%

Others
Hth 9.3%

Total #85t: 4,215,041 sq.m. F 75K
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in China”

Chu Mang Yee & & fi
Chairman E &

I am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual
results of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the

Company”) for the year ended 31st December, 2001.

Turnover and Profit

During the year under review, the Company together with
its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) recorded a turnover
of HK$1,171 million. Profit attributable to shareholders
amounted to HK$120.9 million. Earnings per share were
HK12 cents.

Dividend

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of
HK 2 cents per share for the year ended 31st December,
2001. Combined with the interim dividend of HK 1 cent,
the total dividend for the year amounted to HK 3 cents

per share.

Chairman’s Statement

“The Group will capitalise on its competitive edges

and further expand its business into other major cities

[ 7K 55 [B] %5 71| F £ i 18 2 7
AR B EL il - 22 450 7 Ak A o R R T

KARARESLEBAEREBEAR A A ([
AR BEZTETE-—F+A=+—HL
FEMEFEE UHBREELEE-

ClEMBERERN AARIERHENERA
(B[ AEE]) LR /1,171,000,000
P 7T o IR 5R FE {5 5 T 48 88 2 120,900,000/%8
T BREMB1281 -

EFEEERARERE_TT—FF+-_A=+
— B FERMB R ER2E( - & R A
B 2FRkSAERSBRIEN-



Market Overview

2001 continued to be a year of challenges, mostly due
to the global economic slowdown, followed by the tragic
911 incident that further impaired consumer confidence.
Despite the economic slowdown that affected every
industry on a global basis, China was able to sustain
encouraging economic growth, the momentum of which
continues with the nation’s accession into the World
Trade Organization (“WTQO”). In 2001, China achieved
a 7.3% increase in GDP growth, one of the highest in

the world.

A A & A R A A

mEHE

T -FNHEARKEN—F FEZEREAE
AEREERRURN——SH#E—FTE
HEEELD MELCERRERTEE 2 HERE
THE - PRENEERS ARBENLEER
BEMmAERESAZ ([HE]) & HIERS
N#EFRE-— T —F FREANEELEE
RIE73% ' AREX&ERZ—

Show Flat of Regal Riviera
B RN B E

Among the major cities in China, Guangzhou
demonstrated its outstanding potential for further
development. In 2001, Guangzhou achieved a GDP
growth of 13% and its citizens’ average disposable
income also increased at a rate of 7% which was ranked
the first among major cities. This affluence has led to a
rising trend for property ownership. In 2001, the
expenditures related to housing were also elevated to
approximately 13.9% of the total consumers’

expenditures.

Secondary School in Huanan New City

T E BB P 2

EREBHFE BEMNDREZESKBHH
RERE- ZTT—F EMEB13%M At 4E
EREER ERIHIIRKRAEA7% -
AEABRTZE HEBMER BEETHB
TR —_ZTE—F HEEFHENEEBLAZ
AMEHEEENT13.9% °
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Facing an active market with keen competition, product
design, immaculate service quality as well as market
reputation have become increasingly important areas of
contention. Amidst a challenging market environment, the
Group still enjoys considerable competitive edges through
the established brand it has earned as a property developer

adhering to the high quality products and services.

Prospects

With China’s full entrance into WTO and the impetus
brought by the hosting of the 2008 Olympic Games in
Beijing, the outlook for China’s property market is more
attractive than ever, particularly in major cities. The trend
of property ownership has entrenched into an

impregnable position in today’s living in China.

The Group will capitalise on its competitive edges and
further expand its business into other major cities in
China. In January 2002, the Group moved its first step
out of Guangzhou and announced its participation in
four sizable projects in Beijing and Tianjin with a total
investment cost amounting to approximately HK$820
million, which is intended to be financed by internal
resources, on-going proceeds and bank borrowings. Full
details of these projects were set out in a circular dated

31st January, 2002 to the shareholders of the Company.

The Group will continue with its successful strategy of
focused development and enhancement of quality large-

scale and multi-facility residential projects.

All in all, we are confident in meeting every opportunity
and challenge ahead. On behalf of the Board, | thank
our shareholders, customers and business partners for
their support to the Group over the past year, and all

our staff and management for their dedication and efforts.

Chu Mang Yee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th April, 2002

i ERERF U TS ERRBE
BRIS RIS B T R M b B S
ARBOTERET AER{VEERED
MERNBSFEINEE SERENE

HEL-

RE

EEFBEEAMAERE N E-FFN\FL
REIPEENUE PRYPED SIS HE
HER5| 1 BEREARMT - BEXELEOFR
ERAPEAEEREER T 2RO

AEBENAEBRFEEETREEMEZHT
BENERER —TT-_F—F A&£BHBH
EEMUIINNE — 2 EMB2EEILRMR
EERAOEEARNER AREBAOR
820,000,000/ 7T st &I AL E IR - SHE AT
SRERBRITEREE HFEHEBZFED

—EE_F-RA=1T—RHERETEARARK
RZBHA -

AEBEKEEFT - ENKINRES F)XH
RABMEEEFNBEEEYE-

EEmMs BAT2BELARKRENE —
EEMRE - NRARBRRET SRR
EPMEBRHEBE - FHAEENXT
FUROBRHETIMERENS HRER-

K& MK
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B —_EZE _FWA+N\H
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Managing Director’s Report

Tse Sai Tung, Stones ittt 3
Managing Director % % A8 45 72

During the year under review, the Group launched
several new projects. Together with Regal Riviera,
approximately 2,384 residential units were sold. The
Company was also elected as one of the most reputable

property developers in China.

Operating Environment

Amidst the robust national economy, Guangzhou
remained one of the fastest growing cities in China. The
property market properly reflected this situation. In 2001,
property sales in Guangzhou reached 11,880,000 sq.m.
in floor area, of which approximately 8,100,000 sq.m.
were new properties. Approved pre-sales areas amounted
to 7,950,000 sq.m., continuing to reflect restraint in
market supply with approved floor areas less than

transacted areas.

In 2001, monetary housing reform entered its second year
and the percentage of individual property ownership went
on rising. Moreover, there were additional proactive policies
like reduction of development fees and levies, descending
interest rates and the construction of new Metro Lines. All
these factors boosted the market demand. On the other
hand, more rigid restrictions to property presale were
implemented in February 2001, raising the entry barriers

and effectively reducing market supply in Guangzhou.

“Intensification of marketisation, management
expertise as well as product industrialisation, all will

pose challenges to the industry players.”

[ EENE BLEBER URHBLELH
g HREREFEL HNE ]

EREFEAR AEE#ELBENIER &R
WIFRAERL2384EEETE - AAA
FEERTESREEENDREREB L —

HERR

FPHELEEERER BENKARERERA
Bhz— METSERBUESZBER-ZF
T F ENEHEAREEHEREE
11,880,000 F 75 K » & H 48,100,000 75
REMEVE - EEEEER7,950,000
AR REKREER RS ERES

FRBERR_ZZT-—FERAE_EAFE @
ABENAOLLHERET -HtEEITEE
WEMSELBREBNTE ELEREER
ERZEFEER BXRTHUAREZFNM
HBREF- U LB EGRATIZEDROF
KeBZ—HH —ZEE-F A BFKEY
BEWMERNER R TITEME AR
BEMNEHEMHHNHESE-
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The property market in other major cities in Mainland Hi B ARESRRTHEETSNR T
China also looked promising in 2001. With the T-FNREMNERDFA-AREXAER
inducement of basic positive factors, property demand M ZFARUTHEMENTRGR L5

in these cities was significantly enhanced.

Show Flat of Regal Riviera Interior of Regal Riviera
HI® RN EL B mREARE
Sales Performance HERR

For the most part of 2001, sales activities focused on existing E_ZZ-—FHRENKER HEEDTRT
projects like Regal Court, Huajing New City and Gallopade R ERMBNERERSREEBEA K

Park. Pre-sales of the Group’s major new projects, such as SEHEERUFEAENTEE BERRR
Pleasant View Garden, Gallopade Park South Court and CRRIEE - RERAY - ERIKT
Huanan New City, along with Regal Riviera, were launched TRCERNFEEPELT IS - KD ELE

later in the year. In aggregate, approximately 2,384 FR234HETEM - ERBEEEN R
residential units with total gross floor area of approximately 285,803 75 Ko

285,803 sq.m. were successfully sold.
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Perspective of Regal Riviera
BROL 7 = R 6

Amongst the many awards the Group obtained in 2001,
Gallopade Park was rated as “Top 30 Famous Property
Projects in China” and the Company was also elected as
the “Top 20 Well-known Brandnames of Property
Developers in China”. These awards clearly demonstrated
market recognition of the high quality of our products and
services which is in line with the Group’s mission of

“Impeccable Realization of Quality Living”.

Landbank Replenishment

The Group is currently a developer with one of the largest
landbank reserve. As at end of 2001, the Group’s
landbank was kept at approximately 4,210,000 sg.m. in
Guangzhou which is strategically located. In January
2002, the Group further acquired sites in Beijing and
Tianjin with approximately 3,030,000 sq.m. new site

areas added to existing landbank.

EXREER _TT-FEBNZEREAE
FORSTETEEFSI2BE=TARE] K
ARARES 2BAEMEZELAMEEE —+
R ERERTTSERMSERNE
mAMRBERE xS EBAANEEEE
EE EEBAINTRE-

1BEE + 1B

AEBERRNEREESZ THHFEBNEER
L EBTT—FE FAEEEERMHE
T B 54,210,000 75 K 2 B KBS
MR - AEBR ST -_F— AL RM
K @ 12 & 493,030,000 75 K By Lt
fE o
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Project Development Progress

During the year under review, projects of the Group
progressed in accordance with planned schedule. Phase

2 of Regal Court was completed in September.

Construction of some of the Group's large-scale new projects
was commenced during the year, which included the first
phase of Huanan New City, Pleasant View Garden, Gallopade
Park South Court and Fairview South Court. The work for
Phase 1 of Regal Riviera was concurrently in progress . By the
end of 2001, the total GFA under construction was
approximately 1,200,000 sqg.m., which was the highest since

establishment of the Group.

HEBRREE

EEESEERN AEBERIRB O TEH I
BT BREE_MENAKRIEMNX

FRAEBHFEAEHEEFHHEH
T PEEREHE—H 2528 BSEE
—mEaMERmEe- K ITREBHIRENA
HET- R_TT—FR AEEHEEFH
RIEEEEAE,200,000F F K BAE
B BK 37 LA SR B 3 = o

Public Amenities of Huanan New City

B FTMAL R R

Business Outlook

In the foreseeable future, housing expenditures will still
be regarded as one of the pillars for China’s continued
economic development. It is expected that regulation of
market will move on with greater emphasis on restricting
land supply, increasing entry barriers and facilitating
property transactions. This should help in maintaining the

property market at a stable and healthy state.

Sunrise Scenery of Huanan New City

ERFH AL ER

EBRE

ERR#BR EFEXENERTBERERE
BRAXEZ — BEKE-FRENEH
ER EREMNLHMHE RSTEMEM
BEERX D LA EFEHED
5 e BB TE A2 B R -



As for the property market itself, intensification of
marketisation, management expertise as well as product
industrialisation, all will pose challenges to the industry
players. Larger-scale projects, longer development periods
and shorter product cycles are market reality. Competition
will remain dominant and market selection process will

be accelerated.

Since the sales activities of the Group’s sizable projects
in Guangzhou have already been launched with
encouraging market responses and projects in Beijing
are also expected to be available for pre-sale in 2002,
the overall sales level of the Group should be significantly

improved in the forthcoming years.

The Group will be selectively pursuing geographical
expansion. Leveraging on our brand strength and
professional expertise, the Group has devised plans to
repeat our success in other major cities, and is adopting
a long-term and forward outlook for property

development business in China.

Tse Sai Tung, Stones

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 18th April, 2002
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Property Profile

Huanan New City is located in Panyu District alongside the river, it has a site area of over 2,000,000 square metres and a

ﬁ-— total GFA of approximately 2,400,000 square metres. Phase 1 comprises 62 blocks and is expected to be completed in
T December 2002.

EFEMUEERR BTEWBR - FETIIK  AREEEOECBNTETIIK - SR T EEH
E_TT_F+_AKRT -

Regal Riviera is situated adjoining Pear| River and at a prime area around the new central line of Guangzhou City,
with a total site area of over 650,000 square metres. The site area and total GFA of Phase 1 are over 410,000 and

1,100,000 square metres respectively. 24 blocks of Phase TA and 7 blocks of Phase 1B are expected to be

" "I e completed in December 2002 and June 2003 respectively.

i LT wﬁﬁuu%léli,%@?)H%ﬁl‘;ﬂzﬁfqﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁfuﬂgm BREEERNTREEF K B HHMaBBIN+—
BYK SREEEEe— A t8YHK: FH (F) A tmENE—# (2) KAtERBRSNE—F
ToFEFTZAMZTT=FAKT -

{_.4"::'; 3 q: Pleasant View Garden is situated at Guangzhou Main Road South with an orchard of over 18,000 acres. Total
P ke Nl GFA is over 1,000,000 square metres. 13 blocks of Phase 1 are expected to be completed in December 2002.
RS RRMERNAER @ L8\ THIRN - RREERE-—BETIR  F—HN T =EBEHE—TT—
FH_A®RT -
“-’ Regal Court is the flagship property of the Group. It is located in the commercial area of Tianhe District, Guangzhou.
Total GFA is over 240,000 square metres, Regal Court is an outstanding luxurious estate in the district. The whole
|T| !-i ﬁl, project is divided into 2 phases with 6 blocks. All have been completed and occupied.
el o BRARAEEORELY - CRUEENTRTEHETL - QREAEA—tNETK RENEERE
ﬁgﬁ“‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ LNIE - 2ERT - WEKLAK -
L i Gallopade Park South Court is the extension of Gallopade Park Phases 1, 2 and 3. It has a site area of approximately
‘* ] 160,000 square metres and total GFA of over 520,000 square metres. There are 3 phases and Phase 1 will be
e sl ready for occupancy in October 2002.
%”§+EI %t ?*EHX ’“wEIﬁﬁ:HﬁH‘JF“IEE;ﬁﬁiﬁﬁEX EKTREF K EREREAR T 8T
TR PZHIER - FHIER _TT_F T AAK
i Huajing New City is located at the eastern part of Tianhe District and has a total GFA of over 730,000 square
%?H\:ﬂ metres. 4 blocks in Phase 6C (“Triannon”) are expected to be completed in September 2002.
T - ESHBURERTRR - BREREACT=8F K - "ECHIUE ((RxREnl) BiE—TE-_FNIA
BT o
. Fairview South Court, located in Tianhe District, has a total GFA of over 160,000 square metres. There are 2
F-—ﬁ-l’—-.:'—- stages; Phase 1 comprises 7 blocks and is expected to be completed in December 2002. 8 blocks in Phase 2 are
a mE ¥ expected to be completed in June 2003.

iﬁé?ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬂluﬁu RREEEBBTRE TR KOMBRE - - HRBRCEYE  BAE_TT -
FHoART  F_H/\BYRBFAE_ST=FHAKT -

Fresh Life Garden is located in Chaoyang District, Beijing. Alongside the Tongwei River and opposite to the

" Beijing Broadcasting Institute, the total area and total GFA are 250,000 square metres and 358,000 square metres
- | respectively. Phase 1 is expected to be launched for sale in 2002.
-, =

WTAMERR RIL RS E @ BRI @ LRI RERSR  AHO -+ RS F K BREEEA=TH
BNATFAAK - WISNERNE SR E ST - FHHIHEE -
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Directors’ Profile

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee, aged 42, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chu, Mr. Cheung Fong Wing and Ms. Luk Wai Kei are
the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over 18 years’
experience in trading, construction, property investment
and development. He is also a member of the Guangdong
People’s Political Liaison Committee, an Honoured Citizen
of Meizhou, Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman
of Guangdong Research Institute for The Development of
Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole director of Sounda
Properties Limited which has an interest in the share capital
of the Company as disclosed under the provisions of Part I
of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance.

TSE Sai Tung, Stones, aged 44, is the Managing Director
and CEO of the Company. Mr. Tse was an executive director
of a publicly listed property development company before
joining the Group in December 1996. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the
University of Warwick, UK., and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers and the Chartered Institute of
Building, U.K.. He has over 20 years’ experience in real
estate investment, property development, project
management, sales and marketing and is also Vice President
of Guangdong Real Estate Association and Guangzhou Real

Estate Association.

AU YEUNG Fu, Anthony, aged 67, is the Deputy Chairman
and Finance Director of the Company. Mr. Au Yeung is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
and the Australian CPA, and has extensive experience in
the fields of accounting, management, strategic planning
and taxation. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, he had
been the Commissioner of Inland Revenue with the Hong

Kong Government for 11 years.

BITES

REM 4258 AR EF-RIREKFREL
MEEBLZETRANEENRIRA - REERE
B R MERERERTEHEEGE TN
FREB-RNARERERBEE BEREEIMN
MAEMTRANERCERERRBAR S
R REEDREBEES (BEER) FOIFE =
B ZGXAEBEREE AR RS 23
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W R 4458 AR AR EFLLERITHAE
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XIANG Bin, aged 55, is the Deputy Chairman of the
Company. He was on the senior management of a public
listed company before joining the Group in February
2001. He has over 34 years’ experience in construction

and administration management.

AU Wai Kin, aged 47, joined the Group in 1995. Mr. Au
graduated from Zhongshan University, Guangzhou, and
has over 19 years’ experience in building construction,
town planning, real estate investment and property

development.

CHEUNG Fong Wing, aged 65, joined the Group in 1992.
Mr. Cheung has many years’ experience in the fields of
catering, real estate investment, property development

and management, both in Hong Kong and in the PRC.

XIAO Yan Xia, aged 40, joined the Group is 1995. She
holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the Zhongshan
University and is presently the Deputy General Manager
of the Company. Ms Xiao has over 14 years’ experience

in investment research and capital management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 66, is a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong. Mr. Yuen has over 34 years’
experience in the legal field and has been a director of a
number of listed companies. He is a China appointed
Attesting Officer in Hong Kong, a member of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, and an arbitrator of the China International

Economic & Trade Arbitration Commission.
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LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JP, aged 52, is the Managing
Director of David C. Lee Surveyors Ltd. He qualified as a
Chartered Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorized
Person in 1977. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor,
an associate of the Incorporated Society of Valuers and
Auctioneers and an associate of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the Central
Policy Unit which is known as the Government Think Tank.
He is also a member of the Finance and Buildings & Tenders
Sub-Committees as well as the Audit Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Society. Mr. Lee is a Council member
of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Visiting
Professor of the Guangzhou University. He is also a panel
member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal and a
member of the Advisory Committee on Legal Education,
the Building Safety Improvement Loan Scheme Advisory
Committee, the Immigration Tribunal and the Transport

Tribunal’s Panel.

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 49, is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of United
Kingdom and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants and Certified General Accountants
of Canada. He is presently practising as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and had previously held senior
financial positions in various publicly listed companies both

in Hong Kong and Canada.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Performance

The operating results of the 2001 financial year reflected the
state of the market we competed and the effects of
management actions we took. It was a challenging year for
the Group financially. The Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders declined 25% to $120.9 million (2000: $160.8
million), largely due to the significant, albeit necessary,
increase in operating expenses. Earnings per share fell by
25% to $0.12 in 2001 (2000: $0.16).

Revenue

New projects such as Gallopade Park South Court, Huanan
New City and Pleasant View Garden were put into the
market in late 2001. This had an impact on revenue.
Turnover marginally declined 2% to $1,171 million (2000:
$1,198 million). This, however, took no account of the
turnover amounting to $91.7 million from a jointly

controlled entity in which the Group has a 40% interest.

Throughout the year, the Group carried out its operating
activities predominantly in Guangzhou, China, and in three
business segments, namely property development, property

investment and property management.
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Direct Costs

Prudent controls over costs, yet without compromising
on quality, enhanced the gross profit margin by 2.4%
and reduced the cost-to-turnover ratio from 69.2% in 2000
to 66.8% in 2001.

Operating Expenses

Market competition continuously required greater resources
on sales-promotions, particularly for new projects. As a result,
selling and marketing expenses grew by 38%, or $34.9 million,
to $126.2 million (2000: $91.3 million). The sales performance
achieved enabled the Group to maintain a leading position in

the Guangzhou property market.

General and administrative expenses rose to $57.1
million, an increase of 29%, or $13.0 million, over the
previous year. Following the full operation of new
projects, more staff were recruited. The increase by 37%
in staff number led to a significant rise in staff costs and

staff-related and business expenditures.

Control on spending has always been tight and the vigour
will continue to run the Group’s businesses as efficiently

and cost-effectively as possible.

Financial Position

As at 31st December, 2001, total assets of the Group
amounted to $5,627 million whilst total liabilities (excluding
minority interests) were $3,193 million, representing an
increase of $1,143 million and $1,021 million respectively
over the previous year. The increase in total assets mainly
reflected the effects of additional investments made in
property projects under development whereas the increase
in total liabilities was primarily caused by greater

borrowings and larger payables.
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Liquidity and Borrowings

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group had cash and
short-term bank deposits amounting to $474 million, of
which $110 million were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities. Total borrowings stood at
$1,583 million, representing an increase of 60% or $590

million following investment in new development projects.

The Group’s outstanding bank loans and borrowings at
31st December, 2001, being secured and denominated

in Renminbi, were repayable as follows:

Million $
Within 1 year 915.8 65.5%
After 1 year but within 2 years 311.2 22.3%
After 2 years but within 3 years 171.4 12.2%

The Group’s net borrowing levels increased by $447
million to $1,109 million at 31st December, 2001.

Gearing, measured by net borrowings as a percentage of
shareholders’ equity, increased from 30.7% last year to
49.2% this year and yet remained within the debt capacity
of the Group. Profit from operations for the year under
review covered 3.0 times of the net interest expense before
capitalization, as compared to 6.9 times for the previous

year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st December, 2001, certain assets of the Group
with an aggregate carrying value of $2,044 million (2000:
$1,261 million) were pledged to secure bank loan
facilities used by subsidiaries, a jointly controlled entity

and a related company.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group provided

guarantees to banks for:

- mortgage facilities granted to the buyers of the
Group’s properties amounted to $288 million
(2000: $1,315 million); and

- loan borrowed by an associate amounted to $10
million (2000: $11 million).

In addition, the Group had contingent liabilities of
approximately $38 million (2000: Nil) in respect of its
obligation to Mainland China land appreciation tax,
details of which are set out in Note 7.c to the

accompanying financial statements.

Capital Commitments

With the advent of new development projects, the
Group’s capital commitments in respect of land and
property construction costs, which were authorised and
contracted for, rose to $2,072 million at 31st December,
2001 (2000: $202 million). It is expected that where
pre-sales are in progress, proceeds generated together
with appropriate bank borrowings will be sufficient to

fund these capital expenditure needs by stages.
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Report of the Directors

The directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. lIts
subsidiaries and associates are principally engaged in
investment holding and property development, property

investment and property management.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by activity and their
respective contributions to profit attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31st December, 2001 is

as follows:

EZeMARESEEAREEER QA
(I[ARF]) REMBRAT UATHRBIERSE
B#HZE-_ZET—F+_A=+—HIHF
ENFRERKERTBRE-

FEEH

ARAR/—HAREERAR B TEHBR
AIRBERRETEREREER ERR.
MERERMEREERK-

AEERE_TT—F+_A=+t—HILF
EREKEODNEXRARALZBHRREN
BN BRI AT -

IR R AL

ERE A (ER)

Profit (Loss)

attributable to

Turnover shareholders

T T

$7000 $7000

Property development MEER 1,143,381 125,658
Property investment MERE 2,896 1,746
Property management = 24,594 (6,439)
1,170,871 120,965




No analysis of the Group's turnover and profit attributable
to shareholders by geographical location is presented
because substantially all of the Group’s turnover and
profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st
December, 2001 were derived from activities carried out

in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 1.2% of the Group’s turnover while the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 93.9%
of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 0.3%
of the Group’s turnover while the largest supplier of the

Group accounted for 32.6% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five

largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st
December, 2001 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 40 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of 1 cent per share was declared
and paid during the year. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 2 cents per share, which
will bring the total dividends for the year ended 31st

December, 2001 to 3 cents per share.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 32 to the accompanying financial

statements.

RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFIT

Movements in reserves and proposed dividends of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 34 to the accompanying financial statements.
Movements in retained profit of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 40 of this annual report.

As at 31st December, 2001, the Company’s retained profit
of approximately $2,728,000 were available for

distribution to its shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed and sold any of the Company’s

listed shares during the year ended 31st December, 2001.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and
investment properties during the year are set out in Notes
12 and 13, respectively, to the accompanying financial

statements.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
are set out in Notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the

accompanying financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans as at 31st December, 2001 are
set out in Notes 27 and 28 to the accompanying financial

statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 39 to

the accompanying financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) has granted a waiver to the Company from
strict compliance with the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“the Listing Rules”) on the following recurring connected
transactions for each of the three years ending 31st
December, 2002. Pursuant to the waiver, the Company
is not required to disclose details of such connected
transactions by press notice and/or circular and/or to
obtain prior independent shareholders” approval. Details

of such connected transactions are as follows:

(i) During the three years commencing from 1st
January, 2000, the Group may, from time to time,
appoint Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Co. Ltd.
(“GZ Construction”) as its main contractor in respect
of construction works to be carried out for the
property development projects of the Group. The
appointment of GZ Construction as the Group’s
main contractor will be on normal commercial terms

which are fair and reasonable so far as the
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(ii)

shareholders of the Company are concerned.
Further, individual construction contracts will only
be awarded to GZ Construction if the terms offered
by it are not less favourable than those offered by
other contractors. GZ Construction is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules because it is a 60%-owned subsidiary
of Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited (“GD
Zhujiang”), a minority shareholder of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. During the year ended
31st December, 2001, construction fees paid/
payable to GZ Construction amounted to
approximately $950,000,000 (2000 — Nil).

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, certain
subsidiaries of the Company entered into agreements
with Guangdong Esteem Property Services Limited
(“Esteem”) whereby Esteem agreed to manage the
unsold units of the Group’s properties in return for
management fees equal to 50% of those charged to
owners of individual units of the sold properties.
Esteem is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules because 10% equity
interest of Esteem is held by Guangdong Zhujiang
Property Management Company, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GD Zhujiang. During the year ended
31st December, 2001, management fees paid/
payable to Esteem amounted to approximately
$1,490,000 (2000 — $2,419,000).

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed

the above transactions and confirmed that:

a. the above transactions have been conducted
at arm’s length between the parties on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and
usual course of the business of the Group, and
are fair and reasonable so far as the

shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(i)
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b. the above transactions have been carried out
on terms no less favourable than terms

available from independent third parties;

c. the disclosure provided herein in respect of
the details of the above transactions is in
compliance with Rule 14.25 (1)(A) to (D) of
the Listing Rules;

during the year ended 31st December, 2001,
construction fees paid/payable to GZ Construction
amounted to approximately $950,000,000 (2000 —
Nil), which has not exceeded the annual
construction fees payable to GZ Construction in
respect of the year concerned as permitted under

the said waiver from the Stock Exchange; and

during the year ended 31st December, 2001,
management fees paid/payable to Esteem amounted
to approximately $1,490,000 (2000 — $2,419,000),
which has not exceeded the annual management fees
payable to Esteem in respect of the year concerned as
permitted under the said waiver from the Stock

Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the above

transactions and confirmed that the transactions:

(1)

(2)

have received approval from the Board of Directors;

are in accordance with the pricing policies as stated
in these financial statements; and

the above transactions have been carried out on
terms no less favourable than terms available from
independent third parties.

Save as disclosed in Note 3 to the accompanying

financial statements, no other contracts of significance

in relation to the Company’s business to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates or holding

company was a party and in which any of the Company’s

directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors who held office during the year and up to

the date of this report were :

Executive directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee

(Chairman)

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones
(Managing Director)

Mr. Au Yeung Fu, Anthony
(Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
(Appointed on 15th February, 2001)
Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Cheung Fong Wing

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia

(Appointed on 18th April, 2001)
Ms. Luk Wai Kei

(Retired on 21st May, 2001)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver

All directors except Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Mr. Tse Sai
Tung, Stones are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws. In accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Au Yeung Fu, Anthony and
Mr. Cheung Fong Wing retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
terminable within one year without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.

EERESRBEEN

AEENREEARETIHENECHES
R

=K E

(£/E)

MR EE

(EFEHE)

BfS S St

(B E/E)

g OB E (BIEE)
(R=ZZTEZT—F-_A+HBEEZE)
BREZ %4

SRS L L

mEBErt

(R=—ZTET—FMOMA+/ \BEZT)
Poe 4 3k 22 +
(R—ZTEZTE—FHRA-_+—HEM)

BAFHNTES

Brit i@ sk 4

mARLLE

ERES (REKREERBHRELERI)
ARBARANRAMANR AR BN RIRE
FRE LHERT-REAQRMAA BB E
FERKFREEABERT ERFS

REABMEREERRBEAS LBREEE-

FAEFHERAARREETHBEA R
A —F AT ER (B CER BB M) B
ARIEMRIEAR-



A A & A R A A

31

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EENRMOER

As at 31st December, 2001, the interests of directors ERARRIREES (BEER) KA ([#

and their respective associates in the shares of the BRI B29REFERRANER

Company as recorded in the register maintained ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁtﬁ"ﬂ%%iﬁﬁ?ﬁ#?&%ﬂ@

under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of BESTAMEAEBARR R RBIFMNER

Interests) Ordinance (“the SDI Ordinance”) or which E@:Eéi@—$+iﬂ =t+t—HB E5kEKF

required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities FEENBBASHES AR B H ) #E D

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, to N

be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

were as follows:

ERARBEE
Number of shares of the Company HE 1T
i gril=liled
BAEZ ZEBEzx L8z HttEzs Percentage
Personal Family  Corporate Other &5 of shares

Name of directors EEHR interests interests interests interests Total outstanding

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) KA E () - - 637,500,000 - 637,500,000 63.62%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BX {2 32 55 £ (b) - - 37,500,000 - 37,500,000 3.74%

Mr. Cheung Fong Wing (c) B 3 88 55 A () - 38,000,000 ~ 38,000,000 3.79%

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones H SR S A 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0.10%

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia MMEX 100,000 = = = 100,000 0.01%

Notes: Bt &

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held shares of the Company through Sounda a. RERAEEBBE2ERANHTEERXRERARAR—
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him and ICEA [ 4% 73 1CEA (Nominees) Limited ) 32 A A Bl B 2
(Nominees) Limited, a nominee company. AEIRAD

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held shares of the Company through a company b. BEREEEBE2EHE RIEHINATEEARAT
wholly-owned and controlled by him. A& 15 o

c. Mr. Cheung Fong Wing held shares of the Company through a c. RS M R B H R 60% I 25 b H AL B R 20%E 25 Y
company 60% owned by him and 20% owned by his spouse. —BEAFEERATZER-

Other than disclosed herein, as at 31st December, 2001, VR —EE—F+ - A=+

neither the directors nor their associates had any interests —H BEREBRE A SRR T R E AR

in any shares of the Company and its associated SEE (R ERERIEOHE) AR 5

corporations (within the meaning of the SDI Ordinance) B (IRIE I B S S 28 & B ME AN

which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant TR R B R BEES IR FE298E T

to section 28 of the SDI Ordinance or which were required SR HRERS o

to be recorded under section 29 of the SDI Ordinance.



A A & A R A A
32

(BH=FEH MEEGUAEEREN)
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The Company has a share option scheme, under which
it may grant options to employees (including executive
directors) of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company. As at 31st December, 2001, Mr. Tse Sai Tung,
Stones, an executive director of the Company, has
personal interest in share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. Details of the share options granted to

and held by Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones are as follows:

EEBERODUBGFVER

ARBRABRE S B AEENES
(BRATER) IERBREAZBELARA
AN -R_EF—F+_A=1t—H'&
ARAMBTEFTHEREEREARBLALA
BB REEA D HHERTERRK
FANBREFBHN TXX:

Number of share options

BREHE

BRITEE FRITE
Exercise F4  Exercised FR
price Beginning during End
Date of grant REHBAH per share of year  the year of year
14th July, 1998 —AANFLtA+HEHAE $1.49 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
14th January, 1999 —hWAhE—A+mA $0.61 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
14th July, 1999 —NMWAAFEtA+THIA $1.00 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
14th January, 2000 —ETEF-ATHIAE $0.75 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
5,000,000 (2,000,000) 3,000,000

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates or holding
company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including

debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.

B EXPRBEESN RRARHEEMMMB R
A SRR RERARRANFARESEE
MZH BERARNESTERBARF N
EAEMEABRBNERNBERES (B
E5) M-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS EFERR
As at 31st December, 2001, according to the register of REBEARBREBEESEIE16(1)EER
substantial shareholders maintained under Section 16(1) WEZRRECTMAE ARRBETIIA
of the SDI Ordinance, the Company had been notified ITR-FTE—FF+_A=t—HEEXRAE
of the following interests, being 10% or more of the BITRARRFEE10%HIA L
issued share capital of the Company:

ERITROHA BFRAED K
IRER & B Number of Percentage
Name of shareholder issued shares holding
Sounda Properties Limited MEEXAFRAT 637,500,000 63.62%
Save as disclosed above, the Company had no notice BREXHEEENR_ZEZE—F+A=
of any interests to be recorded under Section 16(1) of TR ARRYEERTAEMRERE

the SDI Ordinance as at 31st December, 2001. HERIEFIE16(1)EE TR -
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(BH=FEH MEEGUAEEREN)

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

INFORMATION ON SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRETENER

R—ANN\F A M B R R B 5 2
([5H8 ) MBE RELEHRUMBENT:

Summary of the share option scheme (“the Scheme”)

adopted on 4th April, 1998 disclosed in accordance with

the Listing Rules was as follows:

1. Purpose of the As incentive to employees BEEED) EREE B R R
Scheme
2. Participants of the  Executives and/or employees FFEM2E ARRREMNERA
Scheme of the Company or its & MITBAB R,/ %E
subsidiaries =]

3. Total number of

100,000,000 shares (9.98%

RIREHEIA]

100,000,000% (15 & 2%

shares available of issued share capital) BIRMDE {TIRZAE 9.98%)
for issue under FRN_T
the Scheme and E—F+=
percentage of A=+—H
issued share HEEHITR
capital as at 31st =N
December, 2001
4. Maximum 25% of the aggregate Bf2EE HEMTRRHER
entitlement of number of shares subject to REBFTEA  #25%
each participant the Scheme REHNRE
under the Scheme LA
5. The period within  Commencing on the date of REBERE BERERLABE
which the shares  grant of an option and ARBRL EZRLEBHNEBE
must be taken up  expiring at the close of ) HA R FOR—EEXB =X
under an option business on the earlier of the ERMETEASHS T
business day preceding the BERA —EZXH
fifth anniversary thereof and (AREERE) HE
the business day preceding 0 48 R B JE
the tenth anniversary of the
date on which the Scheme
was adopted
6.  The minimum Completion of half year’s ARITER  RARF XK —HHE
period for which full-time service with the HEERE Q2FAEZKFEF2ER
an option must be  Company or a subsidiary WEREHR &

held before it can
be exercised
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7. The amount N/A 7. ®BFSEM TEA
payable on BB e
application or 28R
acceptance of the e SR
option and the 5% 80 B BR
period within HEEPH
which payments BREER
or calls must or &) A IR
may be made or
loans for such
purposes must be
paid
8. The basis of The exercise price is 8. EBTEITHE (THEHREFSET
determining the determined by the board of B B A BABERATHERS
exercise price directors and being not less &
than the higher of:
a.  80% of the average a. EBEEBRERD
closing price of the H 5 AT A fE 2 5
shares quoted on the B R 2 50 B <X P
Stock Exchange on the B 7 15 I T (B B
five trading days 80% + M
immediately preceding
the date of grant of an
option; and
b. the nominal value of b. MipHEE
the shares
9. The remaining life  The Scheme was adopted on 9. FEWHHK FER-NAANFEA
of the Scheme 4th April, 1998 and will end HA PR MERA ZE% T8
at the close of business on FRIN—EZXAZE
the business day Ry ] 4 SR B 4% 1E

immediately preceding the

tenth anniversary thereof
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(BHAEEH FEZHEGUEEREL)
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed

during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company had
complied with the Code of Best Practice (“the Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout
the year covered by this annual report, except that the
independent non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for specific terms. However, all directors
except the Chairman and Managing Director are subject
to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings of
the Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws. In the opinion of the directors, this meets the

objective of the Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an audit committee which
comprises Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei,
David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver, independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
the internal control system and financial reporting process
of the Group. The audit committee met with management
and auditors of the Company to discuss the Group's
internal control procedures and financial reporting

matters during the year ended 31st December, 2001.

FRARARABEREMNEERHEBLT
mYEIT IS FEEERITRAEL-

RERASA

E=ZgRR RLERTEARNRARBEILIFNIT
ESNRTRETHRIN AN B A F R
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RERATA (TR BREFREFEL
BN R ERARBEARR AR BAAR
ARANBRRBEAG LRERT-EFS
R WEHFETRHHER-

%
=

)‘H{
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AUDITORS B BED
The financial statements were audited by Messrs. Arthur MBREBALTECRAAER -RNEERFRE
Andersen & Co. A resolution for the re-appointment of FAELIBIEZE—BERBER UEFEER
Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co as the Company’s auditors EEARR TEEMNZEA-

for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors, REREFT
CHU MANG YEE FE
Chairman 5K &= Mk

Hong Kong, 18th April, 2002. FE —_TET_FWA+/N\HR



AR e A R 4 T
38

Auditors’ Report

J J

ANDERSEN ANDERSEN
ZER

Arthur Andersen & Co ZEE AT

21st Floor, Edinburgh Tower ERCIE

The Landmark % ﬂlﬁﬁ ?E g /15 5%

15 Queen’s Road Central L

Hong Kong N BRI 21

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of HEEAREEBRLA

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (RERZEFMALZBERA A
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) 2R R ZEARE:

We have audited the financial statements on pages 40 to ﬁZ1FEJETE}$Z%V$'JEA§E4Oi§E NM7EERRBE
117 which have been prepared in accordance with BAREBARANGHNMBRK-

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors EERRBMEENER

The directors are responsible for the preparation of EEVBEREREAEMAFOMBR
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In R-ERUEZEV B HRRE EFLAERHK
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair RAeEngstmE-

view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting

policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, HANEERRERMERITENER &
based on our audit, on those statements and to report ZEVBRRERBUER WARERE-

our opinion to you.



J

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the circumstances of the company and of the group,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31st December, 2001 and of the profit and
cash flows of the group for the year then ended, and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th April, 2002.
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Consolidated Income Statement

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B2 BB BT 3 Er)

For the year ended 31st December, 2001
HE-_ZZ—F+-A=+—HLFE

2001 2000
—EET—F —EEEF
Note $’000 $'000
Bt 5 Fr Tt
Turnover S 4 1,170,871 1,198,378
Cost of sales $HE KA (782,664) (829,788)
Gross profit EHN 388,207 368,590
Selling and marketing expenses HERTISHEE R (126,181) (91,353)
General and administrative expenses —mMEITHE B (57,080) (44,095)
Profit from operations 78 25 A 204,946 233,142
Interest income B WA 4 4,288 7,939
Interest expense AEXZ (5,938) (698)
Share of profit of a jointly D6 K RHE
controlled entity E8a A 12,584 =
Profit before taxation B 5 B 48 5 215,880 240,383
Taxation T I8 7 (90,891) (86,195)
Profit after taxation but BRI EBRTTIOH
before minority interests PR ER M 25 2 g A 124,989 154,188
Minority interests DB R 2 (4,024) 6,676
Profit attributable to shareholders A% R FE 1k i 8 120,965 160,864
Retained profit, beginning of year R RN F A 635,133 519,560
Transfer to general reserve fund BRE-REBES 34 (7,342) (5,291)
Dividends A% 2 9 (30,050) (40,000)
Retained profit, end of year IR BB E - F 4R 10 718,706 635,133
Earnings per share FRAF|
- Basic — ER 11 12centsfli 16centsflll
— Diluted — #E 11 12centsfil 16centsfll
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TEEREERR
Consolidated Statement of
Recognised Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31st December, 2001 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-_ZZ-—F+-_A=+—HIFE (FTEZ B UBTTBEN)
2001 2000
—EB-F —TETF
Note $’000 $'000
Bt 5% Fr T
Surplus on revaluation of ERREMEASK
investment properties, net R 34 10,524 323,785
Translation adjustments E 3 H B 34 5,799 970
Net gains not recognised in the ARAR A U RIER
consolidated income statement Z W FE R 16,323 324,755
Profit attributable to shareholders % P& 1k 4 7 120,965 160,864
Total recognised gains RIS B 137,288 485,619
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As at 31st December, 2001

Balance Sheets

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZEZE—F+=-A=+—H (FTEZBEH U BT BEN)
Consolidated Company
Re G|
2001 2000 2001 2000
8- _—TTTHE C"-¥BR-f _"TITTH
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ik T T Fr aw
Non-current assets kRBDEE
Properties and equipment NERRE 12 22,507 14,493 = -
Investment properties REMSE 13 1,710,000 | 1,673,000 - ~
Properties under RERBRE
development for ZER
long-term investment RIS 14 716,940 308,032 - ~
Land pending development FRERLIH 15 89,056 222,709 - -
Investment in subsidiaries KB AR ZHE 16 = - 667,382 711,870
Investment in associates REE DR 2% E 17 2,413 7,503 = =
Investment in a jointly TR — i 2L A 2 £
controlled entity BERIRE 18 38,431 30,000 = =
Goodwill HE 20 6,587 = = =
Due from a director - BESHE 3 1,000 - 1,000 -
Total non-current assets ENBEELE 2,586,934 | 2,255,737 668,382 711,870
Current assets RBEE
Properties under AHHEZBERS
development for sale S 21 1,751,799 632,273 = =
Completed properties AN E 2 B IR
for sale M 22 369,536 719,429 = =
Accounts receivable & Ui B 3% 23 277,167 306,803 - -
Prepayments, deposits BNHE-RER
and other current assets HinBEE 24 156,784 74,385 1,803 302
Investment in securities ERERE 25 4,232 6,823 = =
Due from related companies JE W B R R FRE 3 5,983 406 - =
Due from a jointly & U — ol Sk R 4 A
controlled entity ERIE 3 - 157,339 - -
Dividends receivable JE Y B 8 = = 71,000 41,000
Pledged bank deposits BEERRITER 26 110,221 40,000 - ~
Other cash and bank deposits EBe RROTFER 26 363,873 290,363 1,715 4,866
Total current assets MBEERE 3,039,595 | 2,227,821 74,518 46,168
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CHU MANG YEE

KREME
Chairman

]

AU YEUNG FU, ANTHONY

5=
& E

Deputy Chairman
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Balance Sheets
As at 31st December, 2001 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZEZE—F+=-A=+—H (FTEZBEH U BT BEN)
Consolidated Company
ga A\
2001 2000 2001 2000
—BE-% C_"TTTF CZEB-F ZEETE
Note §/000 §/000 $/000 §/000
M r T r T
Current liabilities REBEE
Short-term bank loans GRBITER 27 (751,483) (550,936) - -
Long-term bank loans, current portion Eﬁﬁ%ﬁg%m SHEn 28 (164,283) (228,223) - -
Accounts payable ERRS 29 (147,844) (143,011) - -
Land premium payable, BRI ES
current portion _BSEh (172,907) (143,332) - =
Deferred income, current portion EIEWA BEHEH (140,083) - = -
Accruals and other payables BREM RN A (246,008) (158,384) (1,083) (1,077)
Due to directors RREEHE 3 (1,562) (3,024) - -
Due to related companies JE B E D B ZA 3 (76,209) (57,430) - -
Due to a jointly BN —RERZH
controlled entity ER/7E (87,189) - - -
Due to ultimate holding company BN &ERRATHA 3 (20,000) - - -
Taxation payable e R 30 (45,357) (65,306) - -
Total current liabilities nBEELRE (1,852,925) | (1,349,646) (1,083) (1,077)
Net current assets RYEERE 1,186,670 878,175 73,435 45,091
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 3,773,604 3,133,912 741,817 756,961
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term bank loans, REARITEN
non-current portion FRARH 28 (482,632) (153,084) - -
Land premium payable, ERLHHES
non-current portion _FRBBH (126,425) (2,698) - -
Deferred income, BIERA
non-current portion _FRAHNR (58,889) - - -
Deferred taxation BT E 31 (671,964) (666,266) = =
Total non-current liabilities ¥nBEELE (1,339,910) (822,048) - -
Minority interests PR RER (179,810) (156,615) = -
Net assets EERE 2,253,884 2,155,249 741,817 756,961
Represented by - R&-
Share capital H§$ 32 100,200 100,000 100,200 100,000
Reserves BE 34 1,414938 | 1,390,116 618,849 617,692
Retained profit R B Al 718,706 635,133 2,728 9,269
Proposed dividends BERE 34 20,040 30,000 20,040 30,000
Shareholders’ equity REER 2,253,884 | 2,155,249 741,817 756,961
Approved by the Board of Directors on 18th April, 2002: EEgN T _FHATN\RE:
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st December, 2001 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE-_ZTZ—F+-A=+—HLFE (FrBEL B BT EENN)
2001 2000
—E22-F —TTTHF
Note $’000 $'000
B & T Tt
Net cash (outflow) inflow RELEEBE2EHE
from operating activities CRE) RAFEEE 35.a (151,181) 57,445
Returns on investments . L
and servicing of finance REOHRBEEH
Interest received B B 4,288 7,939
Interest paid =Nl (71,896) (41,764)
Dividends paid SRR EEEN (40,010) (60,000)
Dividends paid to minority EANEIN= NGRS
shareholders of subsidiaries A% A% B = (4,266)
(107,618) (98,091)
Taxation 18
Mainland China enterprise 5
income tax paid BB AECEMBER (80,787) (29,088)
Mainland China land y
appreciation tax paid B8 B R BE £+ 2 (E X - (1,351)
(80,787) (30,439)
Investing activities REXK
Additions of properties
and equipment BAMENEE (11,407) (3,975)
Increase in properties under .
development for FIERPREZERT
long-term investment LS| (403,535) (176,207)
Decrease (Increase) in land i .
pending development FREs R L ahm A (38 n) 133,653 (6,108)
Acquisition of an associate Wig — g E (1,887) -
Decrease (Increase) in amounts JRE U B 2 X =) R IER
due from associates _ (#n) 6,977 (878)
Increase in investment in securities & 7= 1% & 12 N - (8,386)
Increase in amount due y
from a director JE UL — 45 = = R IEE N (1,000) =
(Increase) Decrease in amounts JRE U 78 3 % R R IA
due from related companies (1) w4 (13,811) 5,261
Decrease (Increase) in amount
due from a jointly JRE Yo — ) 2L [R] 122 o B 28
controlled entity RIER D () 157,339 (26,168)
(Increase) Decrease in pledged EHEMRITER (E M)
bank deposits D (70,221) 4,000
Translation adjustments DE B 5,799 970
(198,093) (211,491)
Net cash outflow before o B
financing activities MER <R E ML FE (537,679) (282,576)
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2001 2000
—RE-F —FEEF
Note $’000 $/000
Bt 5% T TT
Financing activities BEEE 35.b
Proceeds from issue of shares I 10 1T P15 3k 18 1,360 =
Share issuance expenses Kih&ETER (3) -
New short-term bank loans FIEHRITER 623,009 550,936
Repayment of short-term
bank loans BEEEHBRITER (422,462) (324,113)
New long-term bank loans MG RERITER 588,774 157,009
Repayment of long-term
bank loans BEERBRITER (323,166) -
Decrease in amounts
due to directors BN EERIERLD (1,462) (1,502)
Increase in amounts
due to related companies JE 1<t B 32 & R RRIE 45 0 18,779 4,237
Increase in amount due to JEA — A KR & 38
a jointly controlled entity FRIE 8 AN 87,189 -
Increase in amount due to JE 7t B B2 AE IR 2 7]
ultimate holding company TIEIE N 20,000 —
Capital contributions from
minority shareholders LR R R A FT B 35.c 19,171 5,583
611,189 392,150
Increase in cash and RekReFMEEHR
cash equivalents # 0 73,510 109,574
Cash and cash equivalents, REeERAETEE
beginning of year HE F1 290,363 180,789
Cash and cash equivalents, REeERAETEE
end of year HE F& 35.d 363,873 290,363
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31st December, 2001
—EE—F+=ZA=+—H

1.

Notes to the Financial Statements

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 24th
July, 1997 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
Its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 27th May, 1998. The
directors consider Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,

to be the ultimate holding company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries and associates are principally
engaged in investment holding, property
development, property investment and property
management.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Principal accounting policies are

summarised below:

a. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties and

investment in securities.

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEEFHBX @
b. Adoption of new/revised Statements of b. HMFEIRRETEHAERE
Standard Accounting Practice Al
Effective from the year ended 31st December, BEE—_TEE—Ft+-_H=+—
2001, the Company and its subsidiaries HIEFER XA REHBAR
(together “the Group”) have adopted, for the (AR [AEE]) BREMATEH
first time, the following Statements of Standard BREQHMAEEM I EY
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the EH| ([t ERKELR]) :
Hong Kong Society of Accountants:
SSAP 9 (revised) Events after the balance sheet date SHEBLENFE BEABEXRA%
(BRI ) =
SSAP 14 (revised) Leases SHERENFE 145 HE
CHES,
SSAP 26 Segment reporting SHEBENFE206H HERSE
SSAP 28 Provisions, contingent liabilities SHEBEANFE 28 BE IREE
and contingent assets RHAREE
SSAP 29 Intangible assets SHERENE 29 EREE
SSAP 30 Business combinations SHEHRERNEINR CEAH
SSAP 31 Impairment of assets SHEBEANENS EERE
SSAP 32 Consolidated financial statements SHEREDNEINE LAMERE
and accounting for investments REREBHM B
in subsidiaries NCIWA- s

RIEE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Adoption of new/revised Statements of

Standard Accounting Practice (Continued)

The adoption of the above new/revised SSAPs

had no significant impact on the Group’s

financial statements, other than those described

below:

i.

SSAP 9 (revised) — Events after the

balance sheet date

In accordance with SSAP 9 (revised),
dividends proposed or declared after the
balance sheet date in respect of the
financial year ended on the balance sheet
date are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date, but are disclosed
as a separate component of shareholders’
equity on the face of the balance sheet.
This change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively as a prior
year adjustment, resulting in an increase
of $30,000,000 in shareholders’ equity
as at 1st January, 2001, which represents
the proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31st December, 2000.

SSAP 26 — Segment reporting

Segment information of the Group has

been disclosed in Note 36 to the financial

statements.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b. Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard

Accounting Practice (Continued)

i

SSAP 30 — Business combinations

In accordance with SSAP 30, goodwill
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities
after 1st January, 2001 is recognised as
an asset in the balance sheet and is
amortised to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life. Upon disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or jointly controlled entities,
goodwill not previously amortised to the
income statement is included in the

calculation of gain and loss on disposal.

In prior years, goodwill was eliminated
against reserves when it arose. With the
transitional provisions in SSAP 30, the
Group has elected not to restate goodwill
previously eliminated against reserves.
However, any impairment arising on such
goodwill is recognised in the income
statement in accordance with the newly
issued SSAP 31 — Impairment of assets.
This change in accounting policy has no
material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as goodwill previously
eliminated against reserves and not
recognised in the income statement is

insignificant.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard

Accounting Practice (Continued)

In addition, the Group has adopted the
consequential changes made to SSAP 10 -
Accounting for investments in associates, SSAP
17 — Property, plant and equipment, SSAP 18
— Revenue and SSAP 21 - Accounting for
interests in joint ventures. These consequential
changes do not have a material impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

The 2000 comparative figures presented herein
have incorporated the effect of adjustments,
where applicable, resulting from the adoption
of the new SSAPs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries, together with the Group’s share
of post-acquisition results and reserves of its
associates and jointly controlled entities under
the equity method of accounting. The results
of subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities acquired or disposed of
during the year are consolidated from or to
their effective dates of acquisition or disposal.
Significant intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on

consolidation.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises where the fair value of the
consideration given exceeds the Group’s share
of the aggregate fair values of the identifiable
net assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised as
an asset in the balance sheet and is amortised
on a straight-line basis over its estimated
economic life. The carrying value of goodwill
is assessed periodically or when factors
indicating an impairment are present. Any
impairment of goodwill is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the impairment

occurs.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company over which the
Group can exercise control, which is normally
evidenced when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. In the
Company’s financial statements, investment in
subsidiaries is stated at cost less any
impairment loss, while income from
subsidiaries is recorded to the extent of

dividends received and receivable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f.

Associates

An associate is a company over which the
Group has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its financial and operating
policy decisions. In the consolidated financial
statements, investment in associates is
accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, whereby the investment is initially
recorded at cost and is adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of associates, distributions
received from associates, other necessary
alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest
in associates arising from changes in the equity
of associates that have not been included in
the income statement of associates,
amortisation of the difference between the cost
of investment and the Group’s share of the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired at the date of acquisition
(goodwill), and any impairment loss. The
Group’s share of post-acquisition results of
associates is included in the consolidated
income statement.

Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity
established between the Group and one or
more other parties for a pre-determined period
of time, with the rights and obligations of the
joint venture partners being governed by a
contract. If the Group is able to govern and
control the financial and operating policies of
the contractual joint venture so as to obtain
benefits from its activities, such joint venture
is considered as a de facto subsidiary and is
accounted for as a subsidiary. If the Group
can only exercise significant influence over
the contractual joint venture, such joint venture
is accounted for as an associate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture
where the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint
control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic
activity. In the consolidated financial
statements, investment in jointly controlled
entities is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting, whereby the investment
is initially recorded at cost and is adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results of jointly controlled
entities, distributions received from jointly
controlled entities, other necessary alterations
in the Group’s proportionate interest in jointly
controlled entities arising from changes in
equity of jointly controlled entities that have
not been included in the income statement of
the jointly controlled entities, amortistation of
the difference between the cost of investment
and the Group’s share of the aggregate fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired at
the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any
impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-
acquisition results of jointly controlled entities
is included in the consolidated income

statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly controlled assets

A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves
the joint control and ownership by the Group
and other parties of assets contributed to, or
acquired for the purpose of, the joint venture
is accounted for as jointly controlled assets.
In the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s share of jointly controlled assets and
any liabilities incurred jointly with other
venturers are recognised and classified
according to the nature of the relevant items.
Income from the sale or use of the Group's
share of the output of jointly controlled assets
is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, whilst the
Group’s share of expenses in respect of jointly

controlled assets is recognised as incurred.
Properties and equipment and depreciation

Properties and equipment, other than
investment properties, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Major expenditures on modifications and
betterments of properties and equipment which
will increase their future economic benefits
are capitalised, while expenditures on
maintenance and repairs are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
asset over its estimated useful life. The annual

rates of depreciation are as follows:

2% (lease term)
Buildings 2%
Furniture and office equipment  20%

Leasehold land

Motor vehicles 30%
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

The depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed periodically to ensure that the
methods and rates of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from properties and

equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of properties and
equipment are recognised in the income
statement based on the net disposal proceeds

less the then carrying amount of the assets.

Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold interests
in land and buildings in respect of which
construction and development work have been
completed and which are held for their long-
term investment potential. These properties are
included in the balance sheet at their open
market value on the basis of an annual
valuation by independent qualified valuers. All
changes in the value of investment properties
are dealt with in the investment property
revaluation reserve unless the balance of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit on a
portfolio basis, in which case the net deficit is
charged to the income statement. When an
investment property is disposed of, previously
recognised revaluation surpluses are reversed
and the gain or loss on disposal reported in
the income statement is determined based on

the net disposal proceeds less the original cost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k.

Investment properties (Continued)

No depreciation is provided for investment
properties unless the unexpired lease term is
20 years or less, in which case depreciation is
provided on the then carrying value over the

unexpired lease term.

Properties under development

Properties under development for sale, the pre-
sale of which has not commenced, are
included in current assets at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Properties under
development for sale, the pre-sale of which
has commenced, are included in current assets
at cost plus attributable profits, less foreseeable
losses and sale instalments received and
receivable. Properties under development for
long-term investment are stated at cost less

any impairment loss.

The cost of properties under development
consists of land cost, construction
expenditures, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties
and other direct costs. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by
management with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, less further costs expected
to be incurred to completion and selling and

marketing expenses.

No depreciation is provided on properties

under development.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m.

Land pending development

Land pending development is land acquired
and pending a definite plan to be developed
for sale or long-term investment. It is stated at
cost less any impairment loss. Land cost
includes land premium cost, site clearance
costs and other direct costs of bringing the
land to a condition suitable for development.
When the intention is clear and development
has commenced, land to be developed for sale
will be classified as properties under
development for sale, while land to be
developed for investment will be classified as
properties under development for long-term

investment.

No depreciation is provided on land pending

development.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business as
determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less selling

and marketing expenses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0.

Investment in securities

Securities that are held for the purpose of
generating a profit from short-term fluctuations
in price are classified as investment in
securities, and are included in the balance
sheet at their fair values. All changes in the
fair values of investment in securities and gains
and losses on disposal of investment in
securities are recognised in the income

statement when they arise.

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of one of these assets
may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss representing the
difference between the carrying amount and
the recoverable amount of an asset is
recognised in the income statement. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
net selling price and value in use. The net
selling price is the amount obtainable from
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length
transaction less the costs of the disposal, while
value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal

at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of impairment loss of an asset
recognised in prior years is recorded when
there is an indication that the impairment loss
recognised for the asset no longer exists or
has decreased. The reversal is recorded in the

income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a
present obligation, legal or constructive, as a
result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligations, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligations.
Provisions are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to

settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. A
contingent asset is not recognised in the
financial statements but disclosed when an

inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EEEIBER (&)
r. Turnover and revenue recognition r. EXFERBANER

EEB(MREALENEZ) BIF
HFEEREEWE: (NHSHKA:
RGNWMEBEBRE - WARR Z#
REUATSEHMEEMZIHNE

Turnover (net of applicable business tax)
consists of (i) pre-sale and sale of properties,
(ii) rental income, and (iii) property

management fees. Revenue is recognised when

the outcome of a transaction can be measured 775 | 25 AT B8 B8 A 72N 5 B A 1 R o LY
reliably and when it is probable that the ARRIAT EEMER

economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group. Revenue is

recognised on the following bases:

i Pre-sale and sale of properties BERHEYE

Pre-sale of properties under development
for sale under legally-binding agreements
is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the properties, with the
profit recognised restricted to the amount
of instalments received. No revenue from
pre-sale of properties is recognised until
the construction has progressed to a stage
when completion of the properties and
the ultimate realisation of profit can be
reliably estimated. Sale of completed
properties held for sale is recognised
when a legally-binding agreement has
been executed, with the profit recognised
restricted to the amount of instalments

received.

When a purchaser defaults in the payment
of instalments and the Group exercises
its right to terminate the sale, the revenue
and the related profit previously
recognised are reversed and the
instalments received and forfeited are

credited to the income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r.

Turnover and revenue recognition (Continued)

ii Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the relevant

leases.

iii  Property management fees

Property management fees are recognised

when the service is rendered.

iv  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis on the principal

outstanding and at the rates applicable.

Deferred income represented amounts received
for which the earning process has not been

completed.

Taxation

Individual companies within the Group provide
for profits tax on the basis of their profits for
financial reporting purposes, adjusted for
income and expense items which are not
assessable or deductible for profits tax

purposes.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

S.

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability
method, at the current tax rate, in respect of
significant timing differences between profit
as computed for taxation purposes and profit
as stated in the financial statements, except
when it is considered that no liability will arise
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
are not recognised unless the related benefits
are expected to crystallise in the foreseeable

future.

Advertising and promotion costs

Costs of advertising and promotion are

expensed as incurred.

Employee retirement benefits

Costs of employee retirement benefits are
recognised as an expense in the period in

which the employees’ services are rendered.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset that takes a substantial period of
time to bring to its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset at
rates based on the actual cost of the specific
borrowings. All other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

W.

Operating leases

Operating leases represent leases under which
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets remain with
the lessors. Rental payments under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the

relevant leases.

Subsequent events

Post-year-end events that provide additional
information about financial position as at the
balance sheet date or those that indicate the
going concern assumption is not appropriate
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes

when material.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group
maintain their books and records in the primary
currencies of their respective operations
(“functional currencies”). In the accounts of
the individual companies, transactions in other
currencies during the year are translated into
the respective functional currencies at the
applicable rates of exchange prevailing at the
time of the transactions; monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date. Exchange
gains and losses are dealt with in the income

statement of the individual companies.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Y.

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The Group prepares consolidated financial
statements in Hong Kong dollars. For the
purpose of consolidation, all the assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries with functional
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
applicable rates of exchange in effect at the
balance sheet date; all income and expense
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the applicable average exchange rates during
the year. Exchange differences arising from
such translation are dealt with as movements

in cumulative translation adjustments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong requires
management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual

results could differ from those estimates.
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3.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALXRE
Parties are considered to be related if one party has BMEALTIZESER NEREIEEE
the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other HBE—HHEL T B REERER
party or exercise significant influence over the other B —HATEEATENNAL-A
party in making financial and operating decisions. Rz FEALXE— AL ZEHIHE
Parties are also considered to be related if they are —ATZEAEE THERSBEA
subject to common control or common significant )
influence.
a. The Group had the following significant a. AEETHEAEALETTIE
transactions with related parties: AR5 :
2001 2000
—%%-F —2T%
$'000 §'000
Fr T
Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited (i) BRHIREBRAA()
- Consultation fees for project planning -AEEREAREXA/
paid/payable by the Group ENNERE 58 526
- Office rentals paid/payable by the Group -AEEXf/EANETERS 1,760 987
Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Co. Ltd. (i) ERWITIREABERAR()
- Construction fees for property ~REERNRERER
development projects paid/payable XAt/ FEft
by the Group MEES 950,000 -
Guangdong Zhujiang Property Design Company (i) ~ BRI EETRE:
- Property design fees paid/payable by the Group ~ —AEEX 'T/J?‘ W’WJ%&X%E 11,499 717
Tonking International Limited (ii) Il B B BR A PR 22 31 i)
- Office rentals paid/payable by the Group -AEEXR/ERANETERES 900 996
JADL Design International Ltd. (iii) mERERAERERARR A
- Property design fees paid/payable - REEXR/BRONERHE
by the Group 612 30
- Prize in respect of a design competition -AREED-BERALENRS
sponsored by the Group - 646
Note— Bt 3 —
i. Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited is a minority i ERKIREFRARLSE TARA
shareholder of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. MEARNLBRR ERHKTIITREE
Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Co. Ltd. and EEER AR R ERK IE%Iﬁnx
Guangdong Zhujiang Property Design Company are SFRARRERKITIIRE R A A H M
subsidiaries of Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited. BRA]-e
ii. Tonking International Limited is an associate of the ii. REEEAR AR A4 & B E R
Group. Ale
iii. EEEREEERERAFGHK
iii.  JADL Design International Ltd. is beneficially owned NABLFATEEFTERLEER
by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David, an independent non- HE-

executive director of the Company.
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 3. BEEAIXRS (&)
b. Details of the balances with directors and b. HEZERBERREHRNFG:

related companies are:

Maximum
balance
outstanding
during
the year
EER
2001 2000 AEE
ZE%-f _TTEZE % £ B
$'000 $'000 $'000
r T i
Due from a director BR-4EZ5R
Mr. Xiang Bin B LA 1,000 = 1,000
Due from related companies ElEE AR A
Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (i) WL LA (i) 141 280 280
Affiliated Secondary School of EHES
Huanan Educational A2 E
College (ii) M (i) 2,830 - 2,830
Guangzhou Zhuguang Real BMB R
Estate Development i3k
Company Limited (iii) HRA (iii) 2,884 - 2,884
Guangdong Zhujiang BT
Construction and Design BELMHTRE
Company Limited (iv) BRAE (v) 128 126 128
5,983 406
Due to directors ENEEHE
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KafkrE 894 849
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones Eilel B = 1,494
Mr. Au Wai Kin BERLE 668 681
1,562 3,024
Due to related companies ERBERAHA
Guangdong Zhujiang BRBIRA
Investment Limited (i) BRAA (i) 7,060 10,495
Guangzhou Tianhe Keji B KA
Garden Enterprise HRE
Development Company EXER
Limited (i) BBAA (i) 25,313 -
Guangzhou Tianhe High BMAA
Technology Development BHRMERR%
Company Limited (i) REXARNT () 21,477 21,277
Guangzhou Watch BM
Production Company (i) FH&A () 20,163 19,975
Guangdong Zhujiang BRI
Enterprise Development EXER
Company Limited (i) ARAT () - 4,290
Guangdong Zhujiang BRAIT
Real Estate Company (iv) EXNA (v) 1,201 1,393
Guangzhoushi Zhuguang BT %
Nanjing Real Estate BREBE
Company Limited (iv) ERAF (iv) 995 -
76,209 57,430
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3.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes—

i These companies are minority shareholders of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

ii. Affiliated Secondary School of Huanan Educational
College is a joint venture partner of Guangdong
Huasheng Cultural Development Company Limited, an
associate of the Group.

iii. Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate Development
Company Limited is a joint venture partner of a property
development project located in Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China (see
Note 19).

iv. These companies are subsidiaries of Guangdong
Zhujiang Investment Limited, a minority shareholder of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

The amount due from a director is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and not repayable within
one year. All other balances with directors and
related companies are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and without pre-determined repayment

terms.

The outstanding balances with a jointly
controlled entity and ultimate holding
company are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and without pre-determined repayment terms.

As at 31st December, 2001 approximately
$82,611,000 (2000 — Nil) and approximately
$19,081,000 (2000 — Nil) of the Group’s
investment properties were pledged as
collateral for bank loans borrowed by a jointly
controlled entity and a related company,

respectively (see Note 13).

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$174,033,000 (2000 — Nil) of the Group’s
properites under development for long-term
investment were pledged as collateral for bank
loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity
(see Note 14).
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As at 31st December, 2001, the Group’s
completed properties for sale of approximately
$89,719,000 (2000 — $79,234,000) were
pledged as collateral for bank loans borrowed

by a related company (see Note 22).

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group’s bank
deposits of approximately $25,000,000 (2000
— Nil) were pledged as collateral for a bank
loan borrowed by a jointly controlled entity
(see Note 26).

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group had
guaranteed a bank loan of approximately
$10,035,000 (2000 — $10,738,000) of an

associate (see Note 38).

89,719,000 (—Z EEZE =T F :
79,234,0007T) B e fE—EEEA
RIZIRTEEZERR (R
22) e

& B 2 #R1777 5 £925,000,0007T
—EETFE-B|MERE—[HH
AEHER 2 RITEEZERD
(RFIzE26) o

W_ZEE—F+-A=+—HB 'K
EEA—BBMERAN—FERE
#710,035,000c (ZEE T F:
10,738,0007T) HER1TE IR ML 12

® (R HEE38) °
4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE 4., EFEBEERW=

Turnover and revenue (consolidated) consist of: e LN (RE) B

2001 2000
—gg-F -—TT=T

$’000 $'000

Fr T

Pre-sale and sale of properties BERHEHEME 1,143,381 1,187,056
Rental income e WA 2,896 4,762
Property management fees MEERE 24,594 6,560
Total turnover s R 1,170,871 1,198,378
Interest income F 2 WA 4,288 7,939
Total revenue Nl 1,175,159 1,206,317
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5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BR¥LATRF
Profit before taxation (consolidated) is determined BRBADERN (BRa) DMK LKt AT
after charging and crediting the following items: FIEBRETE:
2001 2000
—EE-F —_ZETTF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
After charging — 2 Ik -
Employment costs (including BB
directors’ emoluments) (BREZMS:) 31,591 29,985
Interest on bank loans wholly BARAFABHEERN
repayable within five years RITERAE X H 71,896 41,764
Less: Interest capitalised as WAERERTYRLS
part of the cost of properties A E &AM
under development * B * (65,958) (41,066)
5,938 698
Advertising expenses B&EEN 75,177 59,787
Depreciation of properties YEYSE S
and equipment R ITE 3,355 2,717
Loss on disposal of properties HEMHERRB
and equipment o k] 38 -
Amortisation of goodwill 7 2 3 1,647 —
Loss on investment in securities B EEE 2,591 1,563
Operating lease rentals ERMENEX
in respect of premises HLHHEE 3,021 2,200
Auditors’ remuneration = SR B & 888 1,048
After crediting — [ AN
Rental income, less outgoings HeBA (MK H) 2,606 4,286
Interest income from bank deposits RITERBF B WA 4,288 7,939
Net exchange gain E X W a5 R 85 160
& The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for 3 HE_ZZ—F+-_A=+—HILFENHE
the year ended 31st December, 2001 was approximately 6.37% BREZEERENFHEN RN R6.37%

per annum (2000 — 6.05% per annum). (ZETZTF:6.05%) °
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 6. EBERERTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
a. Details of emoluments paid/payable to a. BN/ ENEAIFTESZTHMEF
directors of the Company are: BT
2001 2000
—EE2—F —EETEF
$7000 $’000
F T T
Fees for executive directors HWITESTNES - -
Fees for non-executive directors IERMITEENEE 120 120
Other emoluments for HITEEHW
executive directors = B &
— Basic salaries and allowances — B REH & MR 8,925 8,064
— Retirement contributions —RIRE H K 65 =
Other emoluments for IEMITEEH
non-executive directors H A B = -
9,110 8,184
No directors waived any emoluments during RAFEAN BESEWRETMENE-
the year. No incentive payment for joining the RAFEN WEEMMSENKER
Group or compensation for loss of office was TEZERMBEASEN R KL

paid/payable to any director during the year. BizemE-
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 6. EERSRITHRAEME (B)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Analysis of directors’ emoluments by number REZANBEBE R 5E 58 E =B
of directors and emolument ranges is as oMM
follows:

Number of directors

EZAY
2001 2000
—EE-F —TETHF
Executive directors BWITES
Nil to $1,000,000 £ %£1,000,0007T 5 5
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000  2,000,0017F Z2,500,0007T 1 -
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,0017T £ 3,000,0007T 2 1
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,0017T 2 4,000,0007T = 1
Non-executive directors FHITES
Nil to $1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 3 3
11 10
b.  Details of remuneration of the five highest paid b. HERBESFAL(BEHTES
individuals (including executive directors and REMES) OMEFBNT:
other employees) are:
The five highest paid individuals consist of: IEB&ESHFALERE:
2001 2000
—ER-F —TETHF
Number of directors EEA™ 3 2
Number of employees EE AR 2 3
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6. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 6. EFENSRNITHRAEME ()
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

ENEENAAREENHHMEE
R EXHEE6.a > BN REMIEES
R ATHMEFBET:

The emoluments paid/payable to the highest
paid individuals who are directors of the
Company have been included in Note 6.a
above. Details of emoluments paid/payable to
the non-director highest paid individuals are:

2001 2000

—E22-F —TTTHF

$’000 $'000

T Tt

Basic salaries and allowances EARFH e KER 1,475 1,473
Retirement contributions RIRE H 24 3
1,499 1,476

RAFER AEREHAL

No emolument was paid to the five highest

paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.

Analysis of emoluments paid to the non-
director highest paid individuals by number of
individuals and emolument ranges is as
follows:

(BEREENEMEER) X E
BNEMMESERMBEAREE
MBI SIERRERMUMNAE

g
BRABEMe RS D ZIEE
ExEHATHHME ST
T

Number of individuals

AB
2001 2000
—g%-5 —TTTF
Nil to $1,000,000 £ %£1,000,0007T 2 3
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7. TAXATION 7. B®E
Taxation (consolidated) consists of: HMIE (RE) BFE:
2001 2000
—RE-F —FEETF
$’000 $000
Fr T
Company and subsidiaries NCIDSEG= NG
Current taxation — RNERFL I —
Hong Kong profits tax &EMEH 1,060 -
Mainland China enterprise A B K B b 3
income tax FT 15 5t
— current year —KREE 75,565 61,594
— over-provision in prior years —EFEBREG - (21,149)
Mainland China land 2NN 7 b
appreciation tax AT 8,926 27
Deferred taxation — BRI —
Mainland China enterprise B K BE 1 2
income tax e
— current year —RFE 1,187 24,574
— under-provision in prior years —EFEETEEB - 21,149
86,738 86,195
Jointly controlled entity HAZFHER
Current taxation — NEATLIE —
Mainland China enterprise A B K B b 3
income tax FTiS 4,153 -
90,891 86,195

a. Hong Kong profits tax

a. EHEMNEH

BERMNSHIANEBELLRK
BE BT ERDENIE16%
(ZZZETF 16%) OB REE-

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the
rate of 16% (2000 — 16%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from

Hong Kong.
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TAXATION (Continued)

b.

Overseas income tax

The Company is exempt from taxation in
Bermuda until 28th March, 2016. Subsidiaries
established in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business
Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands
and, accordingly, are exempt from British
Virgin Islands income taxes. Subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China
are subject to Mainland China enterprise
income tax at the rate of 33% (2000 — 33%).

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied
at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including costs of land and
development and construction expenditures.
The Mainland China National Tax Bureau
granted a ruling in 1999 to exempt
development projects registered before 1st
January, 1994 from payment of Mainland
China land appreciation tax up to 31st
December, 2000, whilst sales of properties
relating to development projects registered
after 1st January, 1994 are subject to Mainland

China land appreciation tax.

7.
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TAXATION (Continued)

C.

Mainland China land appreciation tax (Continued)

The Group is required to report and make
prepayments to the Guangzhou Local Tax
Bureau in respect of its obligation to Mainland
China land appreciation tax on a quarterly
basis based on 1% of the sales of related
properties and to pay the balance upon
completion of individual development projects.
The Group has reported its obligation to
Mainland China land appreciation tax.
However, commencing from 1st January, 2001,
the Guangzhou Local Tax Bureau has not
requested the Group to make any prepayment
in respect of land appreciation tax. Taking into
account the current practice of tax collection
in Mainland China in respect of sales revenue
and the related gain up to 31st December,
2001, the Company’s directors consider it is
unlikely that the Group will be required to
make any payment in respect of Mainland
China land appreciation tax in excess of the
amount based on 1% of the sales of related
properties. An appropriate provision of
approximately $8,926,000 (2000 — $27,000)
for the year ended 31st December, 2001 was
recorded. Had the Group been required to
record Mainland China land appreciation tax
calculated at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the amount of proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditures,
provision for Mainland China land appreciation
tax for the year ended 31st December, 2001
would have been increased by approximately
$37,658,000 (2000 — Nil).
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders
includes a profit of approximately $23,509,000
(2000 — $39,196,000) dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends consist of:

8. MREMEEAR

MR (R4 A8 F B IR AR 5 4 B
%5 3R 2= N = B 9 % A1 4923,509,0007T
(ZZ=ZTZT4:39,196,0007T) °

9. RE

2001 2000
—22-F —_TTTF
$'000 $'000
Tr T
Interim dividend paid of $0.01 Bk HRE &R E®R.O1TT
(2000 - $0.01) per ordinary share (ZEZTZF:0.01T) 10,010 10,000
Proposed final dividend of $0.02 BEAPKREEREAR0.02T
(2000 - $0.03) per ordinary share (ZEZTZF:0.037T) 20,040 30,000
30,050 40,000
RETAINED PROFIT 10. REEEF
Retained profit consists of: REHENBIE:
2001 2000
—EB—F —ETEEF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Company ZAN/NE] 2,728 9,269
Subsidiaries Lhg=E NS 707,547 625,864
Jointly controlled entity HREHIE RS 8,431 -
718,706 635,133
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EARNINGS PER SHARE 1. BREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the BHE_ZT—F+_A=+—HILF
year ended 31st December, 2001 is based on the B BRERENIIRAFE IR
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of FE(h 4R & % 1 £9120,965,0007T (=&
approximately $120,965,000 (2000 — $160,864,000) T F:160,864,0007T) R FRNE BT
and the weighted average number of approximately AN #E ¥ 5 AR B 491,000,630,000/% (=
1,000,630,000 shares (2000 - 1,000,000,000 shares) T T T :1,000,000,0008%) 5 & - &
in issue during the year. The calculation of diluted E_EZE-F+_A=+—HILFE
earnings per share for the year ended 31st WERBEERNDRERRELSES
December, 2001 is based on the consolidated profit st A £120,965,000T (ZE T T F
attributable to shareholders of approximately 160,864,0007T) K & A E & 17 858 AN
$120,965,000 (2000 - $160,864,000) and the & B B#91,001,100,0008% (= F
diluted weighted average number of approximately T ZTF:1,000,483,000/%) (B 2=
1,001,100,000 shares (2000 — 1,000,483,000 shares) BEBEFERNDELRAE)FE-
in issue after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential shares.
REFESRERBN RS RES
A reconciliation of the weighted average number M E) INAE IR B FAER AT
of shares used in calculating the basic earnings per
share and the diluted earnings per share is as
follows:
2001 2000
- —EETHF
$’000 $000
T T
Weighted average number of shares REsTE &k
used in calculating basic EXREMNZ
earnings per share AN 15 A B 1,000,630 1,000,000
Adjustment for potential dilutive MEARITEZESR
effect in respect of outstanding BlREZBETEES
employee share options FEFELZAR 470 483
Weighted average number of shares REsTE =k
used in calculating diluted BEEMN
earnings per share AN 15 A B 1,001,100 1,000,483
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12. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT 12. YIERFE
Movements in properties and equipment MERREOES GFE) T

(consolidated) are:

2001 2000
—EE-F “Z%%
Leasehold Furniture
land and  and office Motor
buildings  equipment vehicles Total Total
HELw  RERE
kBT LRERE nE X X
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
T Fr T Tr T
Cost M A fE
Beginning of year F1) 7,004 6,743 9,734 23,481 19,506
Additions g = 4,191 7,216 11,407 3,975
Disposals it & = (52) = (52) =
End of year F 7,004 10,882 16,950 34,836 23,481
Accumulated depreciation BRI E
Beginning of year 4] 756 3,581 4,651 8,988 6,271
Provision for the year AEERE 150 1,481 1,724 3,355 2,717
Disposals H e = (14) = (14) -
End of year F 906 5,048 6,375 12,329 8,988
Net book value BERE
End of year iR 6,098 5,834 10,575 22,507 14,493
Beginning of year F9) 6,248 3,162 5,083 14,493 13,235
The leasehold land and buildings are located in ME T REFANEERBE+H

Hong Kong and are held under medium-term leases. HAFER-
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements of investment properties (consolidated)

79

13. REWZE

REMENEY (FEE) T

are:

2001 2000

—EE—-F —ETTHF

$’000 $000

Fr T

Beginning of year F ] 1,673,000 865,000

Transfer from properties under BRBEE

development for long-term RHKRERN

investment BRPYE 21,965 345,451

Surplus on revaluation Bh &R 15,035 462,549

End of year F 4R 1,710,000 1,673,000

All investment properties are located in Mainland
China and are held under land use rights expiring
from 2036 through 2047. They are stated at open
market value as at 31st December, 2001 as
determined by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent qualified valuers, with the related
surpluses, net of provision for Mainland China land
appreciation tax, recorded as investment property

revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$973,466,000 (2000 — $938,139,000) of the
investment properties were pledged as collateral for
the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 40). In
addition, as at 31 December, 2001, approximately
$82,611,000 (2000 — Nil) and approximately
$19,081,000 (2000 — Nil) of the investment
properties were pledged as collateral for bank loans
borrowed by a jointly controlled entity and a related

company (see Note 3.d), respectively.

FIEREMEDMN D BERERRE
RIZZE=A"FE_TN+FHHEER
M ERERE -RSFOWERUART
T+ A=t HdBBILAEELD
BRRTEENAFMEAR HER
B 0B AR B K ok + b SR B B B R 1R
AFAREMEERFHEREA-

R_ZEE—F+_-_A=Z+—H8%
973,466,000t ( = T T T & -
938,139,0007T) W EWMEE THMF
ERBBRAEERITEE (RME
40) IV R ZTEE—F+_A=+—
H'#82,611,0007C (ZETTF - &)
X #)19,081,000T (ZEZETF - &)
ZIEBEMED 5 RIFIE— R LR E
ERL—HBEEARZRITEREZE
Ao (RMEE3.d) e
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Details of the investment properties as at 371st

December, 2001 are as follows:

13. REY X (&)

WMEFBWT:

R-2F-4+-A=+-AHRE

Approximate

Location Group’s interest  Existing use gross floor area

3 B AEBEMGER HAERE MORERE
Phases 5A, 6A and 6B B K 90% Commercial, retail 77,297 square metres
Huajing New City ER4 and carparking

105 Zhongshan Avenue BM B5 TEREES 77297 YAK
Tianhe District X &

Guangzhou B KB 1055

Guangdong Province ERIMESA

Mainland China 6AK 6BH

Phase 2, Jinan Garden B K 90% Commercial, retail 11,991 square metres
South side of Zhongshan Avenue ~ ER A and carparking

Tianhe District BEM As TEREES 11,991 K
Guangzhou KA B

Guangdong Province RILAERE

Mainland China EmitEE2H

Phases 1, 2 and 3 B K 90% Commercial, retail 31,309 square metres
Fairview Garden ER4 and carparking

238 Xingang West Road BM Bi5 TEREFES 31309 ¥AK
Haizhu District BIRE

Guangzhou L FE B 2385

Guangdong Province WREBE - 2R3H

Mainland China

Phases 1, 2 and 3 B K 95%  Commercial, retail 24,362 square metres
Gallopade Park ER4 and carparking

South side of Zhongshan Avenue &/ B TEREES 24362 THK
Tianhe District KA &

Guangzhou RILAERE

Guangdong Province
Mainland China

BETtEE - 2R35H
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. REWE (@)
Approximate

Location Group'’s interest  Existing use gross floor area
it AEEMLER BRERR BAORERR
Grandview Place B KR 100% Commercial and 1,247 square metres
Longkou East Road BRE retail
Tianhe District BEM BELREE 1,247 75 K
Guangzhou K&
Guangdong Province BORK
Mainland China BRE
Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court H B K B 100%  Commercial, retail 49,007 square metres
Fast side of Longkou West Road ~ BER%A and carparking
Tianhe District EM AE TEREES 49,007F 7K
Guangzhou KR
Guangdong Province EORBRE
Mainland China FRIE1R2H

14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG- 14. BFERBRENBRETYE

TERM INVESTMENT

Movements of properties under development for RERBRENERTMEES (KR
long-term investment (consolidated) are: &)
2001 2000
—EE2—-F —EETTF
$’000 $’000
Fr Tt
Beginning of year F9) 308,032 459,113
Additions g 430,873 194,370
Transfer to investment properties EBEEREYE (21,965) (345,451)

End of year F o 716,940 308,032
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14. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG-

15.

TERM INVESTMENT (Continued)

All properties under development for long-term
investment are located in Mainland China. As at
31st December, 2001, properties under development
for long-term
$703,871,000 (2000 — $237,556,000) were held
under land use rights expiring from 2037 through

investment of approximately

2047, whilst the remaining balance of approximately
$13,069,000 (2000 - $70,476,000) was related to
projects located on land for which the Group was

in the process of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$67,713,000 (2000 — Nil) and approximately
$174,033,000 (2000 — Nil) of properties under
development for long-term investment were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (see
Note 40) and bank loans borrowed by a jointly

controlled entity (see Note 3.e), respectively.

LAND PENDING DEVELOPMENT

Land pending development is located in Mainland
China. As at 31st December, 2001,
development of approximately 80,803,000 (2000 —
$210,412,000) was held under land use rights
expiring from 2037 through 2067, whilst the

land pending

remaining balance of approximately $8,253,000
(2000 — $12,297,000) was related to land for which
the Group was in the process of applying for formal

land use rights.

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$80,803,000 (2000 — Nil) of the Group’s land
pending development was pledged as collateral for

the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 40).

14.

15.

FFERPRENBERDYE (8D

FERERARENERDYWENNL
%#Eﬂ*o%:??ﬁfiwL—H:Jr

" #9703,871,0007C (ZE T T F-
237,556,0007T) B FEER HATR & 19 8%
BRAMERBEHRE _T=tFE_TN
TEERAN THMERERE AR
13,069,000t (= T T T F -

70,476,0007T) B A AR EE EE B
EX T FERAEN T o
R_ZEE—F+_A=+—H" %

67,713,000(Z T T F - B)RH
174,033,000 (— T T F - #)Z#F
ERARENERRTMEE D FIF
T’EZF'§@2$E??1§E(%M¢§E4O) & —

HRAZFHEBZRITEEZER R
(iWaﬂ.e) °

FRELH

FERTHAORPEAE- R —
F+=ZA=+—H" %80,803,0007T
(ZZEZTZTF -210,412,0007T) K FFEE

BRITHWBREBEH-_ZTS=tFE-_Tt
FHEIEE M B L AR+ A - HERAY
8,253,000 (ZE T T F -
12,297,0007T) AR A ANEBE EE B F
XL EREN T o

RZEE—F+-ZA=+—80"'4
80,803,000 (ZZEZTTHF - /&) 2
BERIMBERIERAEBRZRITEEZ
HH @ (RHE40) -
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16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RINBRANRE
In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in RARBINEEBERA KNHELQF
subsidiaries consists of: WIRE B
2001 2000
—EB—F —ETTF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETmRR D K AE 74,900 74,900
Due from subsidiaries JE L Fft B A B 3B 592,482 636,970
667,382 711,870
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, R B AR R AEERT B RKE
non-interest bearing and not repayable within one AR—FANER-
year.
The underlying value of investment in subsidiaries $’Kﬂ§$mﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁg AR E B
was, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, not BEBEILAPR_ZET—F+-A
less than its carrying value as at 31st December, :‘f’— HEEREE -
2001.
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st December, RZEZE—F+_A=+—HHHEB
2001 are as follows: NCIESS R
Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
ot AR L ] EETR AEBERL
RAEH EEHH BRRE REEIL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# A&
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% - Investment holding
International Limited RBERTES 2,000 T REER
AAERRARAERLRA
Archibald Properties Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Investment holding

EEEXARAA RERAES 2R BEZR
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16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR e A R 4 T

16. RHIBRABWNIKRE (&)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
&t M A 3 BERTR FREENS
DNAER EEMHN BERRAE REEDL TREHR
Directly Indirectly
HEE &
Ever New Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong $2 ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
BHEXRBERAA BB $3 non-voting - 100% and property
deferred shares(i) investment
2T EBK BRERBRNERE
ISTERRE
SERTRR (i)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Inactive
FREXARLA RBRAEE X LEXH
Galloping Properties Limited  British Virgin Islands Uss$2 - 100%  Inactive
BRUEXARAA REBRAEE 2XT LEXH
Guangdong Esteem Property ~ Mainland China $2,000,000 - 90%  Property management
Services Limited B A B 2,000,0007T services
ERESNERBERDA NEREE RSB
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Mainland China RMB41,802,000 - 53.5%  Property development
Real Estate Limited B KR AR #41,802,0007C NEERE
ERAEESZEHEFRAR
Guangdong Hopson Minghui ~ Mainland China RMB41,532,852 - 90%  Property development
Real Estate Limited FE AR AR#41,532,8527C MEER
ERGERERHERERAT
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua ~ Mainland China RMB24,349,231 - 90%  Property development
Real Estate Limited PR ANE#24,349,2317C MEEE
ERALEBERHERRAR
Guangdong Huajingxincheng ~ Mainland China RMB93,500,018 - 90%  Property development

Real Estate Limited
BRESHUEHERRLQA

B K AR#93,500,0187C

NEEE
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16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RHIBRABWNIKRE (&)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
it i A AL ERTR FEEENS
ACEL EEMH BERAE REEL IERRH
Directly Indirectly
BEE &
Guangdong Huanan New Mainland China RMB126,938,774 - 60%  Property development
City Real Estate Limited hE AR AR #126,938,7747C NEER
EREFNUEHEERAA
Guangdong Huanan Mainland China RMB48,046,856 - 70%  Property development
Real Estate Limited B AR AR 48,046,8567T NEER
EREEFHERRAA
Guangdong Jinan Mainland China RMB65,084,340 - 90%  Property development
Real Estate Limited PR AR AR 65,084,3407C MEERE
BREMEMEERRAA
Guangdong New Tai An Mainland China RMB2,872,587 - 52%  Property development
Real Estate Limited PR AR¥2,872,587 7 MRER
ERNRZEMEFRAA
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu  Mainland China RMB25,194,175 - 100%  Property development

Real Estate Limited
BNEERFRHEERDA

hEARE

AR#25 19417570

NEEE
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16.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

16. RHIBRABWNIKRE (&)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
it i A AL ERTR FEEENS
NAEER EEMH BRBRA REEDL IRRH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB26,500,000 - 95%  Property development
Real Estate Limited PR AE#26,500,0007C MEER
BEMEERREHE
BRAF]
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Mainland China RMB78,328,681 - 95%  Property development
Garden Real Estate Limited ~— H1BI K[ AR #78,328,6817 MEHR
BMNAEMBERLE
BRAR
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui  Mainland China RMB42,417,000 - 100%  Property development
Real Estate Limited B KR AR 42,417,0007C NEERE
BEMGAEREENE
BRAF
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 93%  Inactive
Water Supply Limited B AR AR #2,000,0007T EERK
EMNEEBREKERAA
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 - 100%  Property development

Real Estate Limited
BMNEERERHEERAA

PN

AR#131,420,0197T

NEEER
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16. RHIBRABWNIKRE (&)

Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
it i A AL ERTR FEEENS
kL EEMH BRBRA REED L IERRH
Directly Indirectly
BEE &
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China RMB42,064,000 - 60%  Property development
Real Estate Limited PR AR #42,064,0007C MRER
EMEAERSEHERRDA
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Mainland China RMB6,190,000 - 70%  Property development
Real Estate Limited B KR AR#6,190,0007C NEERE
ENaERSEHERRAF
Guangzhou Xinhua Information Mainland China RMB100,000 - 49.5%(ii)  Publication
Development Limited h A AE#100,0007C HTIRE
EMNHZEERERARAA
Guangzhou Yijing Arts & Mainland China RMB500,000 - 49.5%(ii)  Organisation of
Culture Company Limited ~ F B K[ AR #500,0007T arts and culture
BEMERXLEMER activities
BRAH] EREMIRED
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong $2 ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
AEREBERAR B $10,000 non-voting - 100% ®REZR

deferred shares(i)
AL EBR
10,0007 & & 5 1
B ()
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RIYE QR HIRE (&)
Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
it i A AL ERTR FEEERS
NAEER EEMH BRBRA REEDL IRRH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited KBTS Ve design advisory
BHEIRE (BR) ARAA services
REMERRS
EELT
Hopson Development Hong Kong $10,000 - 100% Inactive
(Properties) Limited Bk 10,0007T TEXHG
BEAR(EX)ERAA
Hopson E-Commerce Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Inactive
BEETAHEARAR RERAES (E TEEH
Hopson Infrastructure British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100% Inactive
(BVI) Limited RERZES 1X7T TEXK
AEEE (BV) FRAA
Hopson Properties British Virgin Islands Uss1 - 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited RERAEE 1XT BEER
AERERMESRAA
Nambour Properties Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Investment holding
HBEXARAA RBRAEE X REZR
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16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RIE QA AVIRE (&)
Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
SR L R BERTR FEEENS
DNEHR EEMHY BRRAE REED L FTEEK
Directly Indirectly
BE &
Outward Expanse British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited RERTEE 2ETT REER
BEARERRADA
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding
AREXRBRDA RBRAES VY BEZR
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding
REEXBRDA RBRAES VY BEZR
Sound Zone Properties Limited British Virgin Islands uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding
HEREXERAT RBRAEE VY BERR
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding

MEEXERADA RERAES Ve BERR
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16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RITB L AHNRE (&)
Place of Issued  Percentage of equity
incorporation and fully interest attributable

Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity

ot AR L ] BEETR AEERER

RAERE EEHH BRRA REBDL TEXH

Directly Indirectly
BE# M &

Timbercrest Properties Limited  British Virgin Islands uss$2 - 100%  Investment holding

AEEFERAA ABRUEE 2ET REEKR

Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100%  Investment holding

HEEXRBERAR ABRUES 2ET REEKR

World Sense Industries Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 100%  Investment holding

ELEXERAA BA 10,0007 BAER

Note — Mt 5 —

i The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not i ZEERZRRTERI EIRERE  NIBRE T
entitled to any dividend, and are not entitled to distributions NERERBREE DK BRIFRAR L BIRZ
upon winding up unless a sum of $100,000,000,000,000 has ¥ E AB B 5 K — £ B ¥
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares and 100,000,000,000,0007T K 5K 38 « H 1% & = £
thereafter one-half of the assets is distributable to holders of EHLERBATORTERZERERNIFTE
the non-voting deferred shares. Ae

ii. These are subsidiaries as the Group’s interests in these ii. HRAEERIESRARANERDEBIER
companies are held through subsidiaries which in turn hold ARE MREMBLRAFA ISR ANAR
more than 50% of the issued voting share capital of these ERBHETRAC0%N ERASEGREER
companies and the Group has the power to govern the ﬁt%ﬂ?ﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁ&éﬁ R - O E ARG B
financial and operating policies of these companies. REBZHBA

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in RBZE_TZE—F+_A=+—HI

issue at any time during the year ended 31st F [E A (E fa] B ) & BT /B8 2% =14 AR AR f]

December, 2001. BEBITEERA
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17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Investment in associates (consolidated) consists of: REERBZ2IRE (FRE) B
2001 2000
—E2E—F —ETTTF
$7000 $’000
5 F
Unlisted shares, at cost RETRMG EKRE 1,888 1
Due from associates JFE Uk Bt 2 X B 5K E 525 7,502
2,413 7,503

JE Wi Bt 5 A GRIE D S R 2 B R
//\b_/\ E'EW{E\ &

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and not repayable within one
year.

RRARBEEREF RBERAINKREN

The underlying value of investment in associates

/

was, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, not BEEBEY TN PR _ZEZE—F+_A
less than its carrying value as at 31st December, =t HHKREE-

2001.

Details of the associates as at 31st December, 2001 RZEZE—F+-A=+—HEEAQ
are as follows: AlZFBEWT

Place of Percentage of equity

Name of company

incorporation

and operations

Issued and

fully paid capital

interest attributable

to the Group

Principal activity

BERTR REBEENS
IR AMRYIREE®E BERX REzESL FEX®
Directly Indirectly
B CE:3
Tonking International Limited ~ Hong Kong $10 - 30%  Investment holding
FIEBERERA A BB 107 REZR
Guangdong Huasheng Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 24%  Inactive
Cultural Development el ARE5,000,0007T TR

Company Limited
BEREAHBEXL
FRARRA
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY 18. RA—RHAEEFER2RE

Investment RARZEHERZIRE (KRE) Bf:

in a jointly controlled entity

(consolidated) consists of:

2001 2000

—EET—F —EETF

$'000 $'000

5 F

Unlisted shares, at cost A EMEG BRE 30,000 30,000
Share of undistributed FE(5 R 2B

post-acquisition results WE1ERE 8,431 —

38,431 30,000

Investment in a jointly controlled entity represents
an investment in a contractual joint venture,
Guangdong Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited
(“GZQREL"”). GZQREL is established in Mainland
China with an operating period of 20 years up to
January 2018 to develop properties located in
Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
Mainland China. Under the joint venture agreement,
the Group is required to contribute 57.14% of the
capital of GZQREL and is entitled to one-third of
the voting power in GZQREL. It is entitled to share
40% of the profits of GZQREL but has to assume
57.14% of any losses of GZQREL, and is entitled to
a distribution of 40% of GZQREL’s assets upon
expiry of the operating period.

The underlying value of the investment in a jointly
controlled entity was, in the opinion of the
Company’s directors, not less than its carrying value
as at 31st December, 2001.

R—EHRAEHERB 2 RENERE
EREMKIGHEMWEBRA A
([BE])) 2B (GHA—HEEHNE
EEE) BEH R B ARRERK L 45 & B
ZE-F-N\F-AIL BH20F HE
EEBAABMRTREAEEREE
NBHREZWE-BEBEEEDLERZ
REBEFEESEBH 257 14%E R R
EREEBH = —REE -AEETT
BREDIEBEZ 40%m F) - fEBEES
HETEZ57.14% AR BERKEEH
JiE oo s 7 53 P 7B EB40% 2 & EE ©

ARREERA N—HARZEHER
CREZEEBETNINR_TT—F
T-RA=+—HRZzEKm@E"



19.

INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS

The Group has a joint venture agreement with
Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate Development
Company Limited, a limited liability company
established in Mainland China, under which each
of the Group and Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited contributed land
and other assets for the development of properties
located in Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
Province, Mainland China. The Group has a 95.3%

interest in the joint venture.

As at 31st December, 2001, assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the Group’s interest in jointly

controlled assets were as follows:

o A Al R AR A R 4 E
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REBEHEEZRE

AEBEE-FHEFERNMKIZZ BR
EARRIEMHKXEHERERRA
RIFI M — M E%EREWE Bt A&
ErENGKAEHEREERAAE
HEABMAPERNEEREEMNEI
BzERETHEREMBEE-AEH
MESEIEE 295.3%E5m-

i)

R-ZE-—E+-A=+—R 4A%HE
BERERBHEEZ BEHREA
MERAER AEREEDT:

$'000
T
Properties and equipment ENE L] 1,661
Goodwill Bk 6,587
Properties under development
for long-term investment FERBREZERTYE 53,552
Properties under development for sale ~ A& 2B RP Y% 418,655
Accounts receivable JfE U BR 3R 27,122
Prepayments, deposits and
other current assets ENFE ZeREMREEE 12,386
Due from related companies JE Y B 3 1~ B RIA 12,706
Cash and bank deposits Re R|ITER 107,643
Total assets EEBE 640,312
Short-term bank loans ZHISRIT B X 142,701
Accounts payable J& 1+ BR 3K 37,173
Land premium payable e i HES 160,504
Deferred income PR E U A 33,216
Accruals and other payables TRIRE A N H fth & 1 5B 12,665
Taxation payable J& 1~ 7t 38 6,956
Total liabilities BfE®RE 393,215
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20. GOODWILL 20. B2
Goodwill (consolidated) consists of: AR (fRe) B8iE:
2001 2000
—EE2—F —EEEF
$000 $’000
T Tt
Goodwill arising from investment REAREGEEZ
in jointly controlled assets * REMEE ZBE 8,234 —
Less: Accumulated amortisation R - RS 8 (1,647) -
Net book value BREHE 6,587 =
* Goodwill arising from investment in jointly controlled assets * RERESEEZIREMEEZBENEAR
represents the excess of contributions made by the Group for EEMMRTRAEEELEENELREZY
a property development project located in Haizhu District, *HABEAARAZEEMRESARNERER It
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland China over the BEYERBRBERA ZEGRRZBESHD (B
Group’s pencentage interest in this property development Hi2E19) o
project (see Note 19).
21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 21. At HE2BERY X
Properties under development for sale (consolidated) AtHEZEHERYE (BE) 0T
consist of:
2001 2000
—EE—-F —TEETHF
$000 $000
Fr T
At cost TR 2,065,872 683,552
Add: Attributable profits on m:EEMER
pre-sold properties J& 15 74 A 209,766 37,215
2,275,638 720,767
Less: Sale instalments and deposits BB W R E R
received/receivable DHN R K& (523,839) (88,494)
1,751,799 632,273




o A Al R AR A R 4 E

21.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
(Continued)

Analysis of cost of properties under development

for sale (consolidated) is as follows:

95

AHHEZBRREDYE A)

AHHECERIMENNAE (FE)
DT

2001 2000
—EE—F —EEEF
$'000 $'000
BET T BT T
Land cost X AR AR 942,344 553,146
Construction expenditures BERX 1,086,077 121,934
Borrowing costs capitalised * BB AME R A 37,451 8,472
2,065,872 683,552

& The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for 2 HE_TZT—F+_A=+—HILFEEE

the year ended 31st December, 2001 was approximately 6.37%
per annum (2000 — 6.05% per annum).

All properties under development for sale are
located in Mainland China. As at 31st December,
2001, properties under development for sale of
approximately $1,637,625,000 (2000 -
$216,712,000) were held under land use rights
expiring from 2037 through 2067, whilst the
remaining balance of approximately $114,174,000
(2000 - $415,561,000) was related to projects
located on land for which the Group was in the

process of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$222,798,000 (2000 - $74,798,000) of the
properties under development for sale were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (see
Note 40).

MMz BEER AN FHEFERL A6.37% (=
TEEE - FF%6.05%) °

2HAIHHEZBRPYEHURF
BAE-R_TET—F+_A=+—
H:#91,637,625,0007C (ZEZETF —
216,712,0007T) AJHHEZER T Y
ERBR-_T=LFE_TtFH
MER THEREFE - HERL
114,174,000t ( Z T T T §F —
415,561,0007T) B A A8 & B IF 72 A
mEX T FERE L T o

R_ZEE—F+-A=+—8 "#H
E2BERAPYEL222,798,0007T (=
TT T —74,798,00070) EFIEREE
RITEECHER R (RHEE40) -
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COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE 22. AIHHEZEERYE
Movements of completed properties for sale AHEEEZEZXMEEZD (KRE) W0
(consolidated) are: Ik
2001 2000
—EB—F —ERZTF
$’000 $'000
F 5 Fir
Beginning of year F9) 719,429 316,799
Transfer from properties under BEAAHEEZ
development for sale ERBPYE 86,853 1,166,103
Less: Sale of completed properties W FRAEEZE
during the year SR (436,746) (763,473)
End of year F 4R 369,536 719,429

All completed properties for sale are located in
Mainland China and are held under land use rights

expiring from 2037 through 2067.

As at 31st December, 2001, approximately
$223,754,000 (2000 - $128,697,000) and
approximately $89,719,000 (2000 — 79,234,000) of
the completed properties for sale were pledged as
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (see Note
40) and bank loans borrowed by a related company

(see Note 3.f), respectively.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23.

Consideration in respect of properties sold is
generally payable by the purchasers within six
months subsequent to the execution of the sale and
purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased
properties and property management fees are
generally payable in advance by the tenants on

monthly basis.

EHAHEECEZRYRBLR A
BARERBER _Z=LtFE_FTX
tEHRERNLERESE-

—ET—F+ZA=+—8 f#H
EZBEEKRMEL223,754,0007T (=
TTTFE — 128,697,0007T) K4
89,719,000t (Z T T T F —
79,234,0007T) E D RIFEAREBERTT
EE (RME40) R —HBAEAR 2R
TEE (RME3.ND 2EMM-

FE& Us B K

BT —REREEMHF LLNEA

AR EMEINRE-ET—REAR
AL EE e R EEEER
T EMAE-



o A Al R AR A R 4 E
97

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 23. EURERFR (48)

RUER (RA) 2RO T :

Aging analysis of accounts receivable (consolidated)

is:

2001 2000

—EE-F —ZTTETF

$000 $'000

T 7

0 to 3 months 0Z31E A 268,135 297,922
3 to 6 months 3Z6fE A 1,224 1,975
6 to 9 months 6Z91E A 1,163 1,982
9 to 12 months 9ZE 1218 A 736 2,052
Over 12 months BiE121E B 5,909 2,872
277,167 306,803

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT 24. ENRE - REREMRHEE

ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets BNFE ReREMRSEERE:

consist of:

Consolidated Company
RE AT
2001 2000 2001 2000
—E2E-F —ETTHF —E2E-F —ETTHF
$7000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Tt Tr Tt
Prepayments for Wi+ 3 2
acquisition of land * TE A~ FoE * 101,424 46,729 = -
Prepaid construction FEfT S
expenditures DN 36,471 13,776 - —
Utility deposits INEE i kA 8,557 4,605 - -
Others Hi 10,332 9,275 1,803 302
156,784 74,385 1,803 302
& This represents advances made to minority shareholders of g Ut RSB E LA A AR E T HE R A

Z DB RAEH 2 AT A B Z O
THEREZERIAZEHNEAF-

certain of the Company’s subsidiaries for acquisition of land,
which will be injected into the subsidiaries upon the issuance
of land use right certificates.
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26.

27.
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INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Investment in securities (consolidated) consists of:

25.

wHERE

EHRE (FRE) B

2001 2000

—EE—F —ZTTTF

$000 $’000

5 F

Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost FELMRG RRE 8,386 8,386

Less: Adjustment to quoted market value & : & 1B # % (4,154) (1,563)

4,232 6,823

Quoted market value of listed shares EmRDzHRETE 4,232 6,823
BANK DEPOSITS 26. RITTFER

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group’s bank
deposits of $85,221,000 (2000 — $40,000,000) and
$25,000,000 (2000 — Nil) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 40) and a
bank loan borrowed by a jointly controlled entity
(see Note 3.g), respectively. In addition, the Group’s
bank deposits of approximately $74,911,000 (2000
- $71,919,000) were held by certain banks in
escrow pending finalisation of mortgage facilities
granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s

properties.

SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

Short-term bank loans bear interest at 5.45% to
6.83% per annum (2000 — 5.85% to 6.66% per

annum). Refer to Note 40 for details of collateral.

27.

R-EBEE—F+-_F=+—H A&EH
$R1T1E 3 285,221,000 (ZZEETZTF
—40,000,0007T) % 25,000,0007T (=
TETF-8) BN RRIEREERTT
EERHE (MiT40) R—HAREH EE
ZIRITEE (R 3.g) 2HEMRo
G REE 2 RITFEFAI74,911,0007T
(ZZEZTZEF—-71,919,000) EX &
FHRITHFEALE UFRTTRAAE
EMEFERK TIRBEERE-

HHIRITE R

MERITE R F B R A5.45%%£6.83%
(BT F - F B E585%%
6.66%) - M 2 F15E 2 M FE40 ©
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28. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS 28. EHIRITE
Long-term bank loans (consolidated) consist of: RBRTER (FE) B
2001 2000
—EE—F —ETTTHF
$’000 $000
Fr T
Amounts repayable AR T3 B E & < FIA
— within one year - —5FA 164,283 228,223
— within one to two years - —EWFA 311,170 153,084
— within two to three years - ME=FR 171,462 —
646,915 381,307
Less: Amount due within one year WRBBEEET
included under current liabilities —FRNE|E 2 KB (164,283) (228,223)
482,632 153,084
Long-term bank loans bear interest at approximately RBRITERFREN637%(ZFF
6.37% per annum (2000 — 5.45% per annum). Refer TE-—FRBE545%) ERmZFE
to Note 40 for details of collateral. A2 BMEE40 ©
29. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 29. IR
Aging analysis of accounts payable (consolidated) ERNER (FE) 2RO :
is:
2001 2000
—2F—F —EETHF
$’000 $000
Fr T

0 to 3 months 0Z31E A 147,844 143,011
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30. TAXATION PAYABLE 30. BHIR
Taxation payable (consolidated) consists of: JERI IR (RE) B1:
2001 2000
—EE—F —ZTTTF
$'000 $000
F 5 Fir
Hong Kong profits tax EEMNGHR 1,060 —
Mainland China enterprise income tax ~ * B KFEDZEFTEH 11,365 16,587
Mainland China land appreciation tax A B A Bt 3R (A T 13,982 5,056
Mainland China business tax B K B 18,950 43,663
45,357 65,306
31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. EERIR

Movements in deferred taxation (consolidated) are: BEMIE (RE) B8N T:
2001 2000
—EB-F —TEETHF
$’000 $/000
Fr T
Beginning of year F9) 666,266 481,779
Provision for net timing differences EE 2 B 5,698 184,487

End of year F o 671,964 666,266




o A Al R AR A R 4 E

101
31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 31. IEERIR (&)
Deferred taxation represents the taxation effect of EEFRIATIRE NS EZRBTE:
the following timing differences:
2001 2000
—E2E—F —ETTTF
$’000 $000
5 F
Revaluation surpluses REWME
of investment properties BEE &R 325,228 320,717
Timing differences arising from R B B K B
the use of different bases 75t 75 1% 28 £
of revenue recognition by Bk ON
Mainland China tax authorities HEEZHRE 346,736 345,549
671,964 666,266




o A Al R AR A R 4 E

102
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. R
2001 2000
—EE—F —EETHF
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
ReEE BREE B% 15 &8 REE
000 $/000 ‘000 $’000
TR T T 1% Tt
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares BREEIT
of $0.1 each 31 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR:
Ordinary shares FREEIT
of $0.1 each 2 EBR
Beginning of year E 5 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
Issued upon exercise 771§ B A% 12
of share options* AT 2,000 200 - —
End of year FER 1,002,000 100,200 1,000,000 100,000
o During the year ended 31st December, 2001, 2,000,000 share * RBEZEE-—FE+ A=+ -HLEE"
options were exercised to subscribe for 2,000,000 shares of 2,000,000k EREEITHEURERQ A

the Company at a consideration of $1,360,000. 2,000,000/ A% {7 * (KB /31,360,0007T °
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33. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS 33. EEBEKRESE
The Company has an employee share option ARAFIRE-BEEEBRES &
scheme, under which it may grant options to b ARF A AES (BEARRRBIT
employees (including executive directors of the EX)RTEREUARBERARRS
Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company, RZTBBARRATEZEETRAR
subject to a maximum of 10% of the nominal value (Ut = T BEE T EBREMET
of the issued share capital of the Company from ZB) EER10% - TTFEERAR T
time to time excluding for this purpose shares issued ExgEE B ERRMEESEE
on the exercise of options. The exercise price will BRERZAHPILEXZAEERE
be determined by the Company’s directors, and will BMEXZMABRARES ZFHKT
be the higher of the nominal value of the shares BEH80% (AREERLE) -
and 80% of the average closing price of the shares
quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the options.
Movements of employee share options during the RBZE_ZTZE—F+_A=+—H1I
year ended 31st December, 2001 are: FERNEEBREZFHNT:

Number of share options

BREHE
Beginning Exercised
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price of year during the year End of year
REAH M RRE £4 ERTE R
'000 '000 '000
T T T
14th July, 1998 14th July, 1998 to 13th July, 2003 $1.49 2,000 = 2,000
“AANELR+TOA “AANELATORE 1.497C
“EF=FtATZ=H
14th January, 1999 14th January, 1999 to 13th January, 2004 $0.61 1,000 (1,000) =
—NMANE-R+OA “AANE-RTHERE 0.617C
“REMF-A+=H
14th July, 1999 14th July, 1999 to 13th July, 2004 $1.00 1,000 = 1,000
—AMANELRTIA “AMANFELATHAE 1.007C
“REMFLA+=H
14th January, 2000 14th January, 2000 to 13th January, 2005 $0.75 1,000 (1,000) =
“EETE-ATHEA “ZETE-ATHEAE 0.757C
“RRRF-A+=H

5,000 (2,000) 3,000
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RESERVES AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS 34. HEREERE
Movements are: BEINT
Investment
property Cumulative
General revaluation translation Proposed
Share premium reserve fund reserve adjustments Total  dividends
-k RENE 2%
KAEE fHEESE EffHE EXAE A BERE
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
i i i i i i
CONSOLIDATED A
As at st January, 2000 “E2EEE-A-H
- as previously reported - EFER 617,692 18,091 424,557 (270) 1,060,070 -
~ prior year adjustment -BREFERE
(see Note 2.b) (RLM5E2.D) - - - - - 50,000
As restated 5l 617,692 18,091 424,557 (270) 1,060,070 50,000
Surplus on revaluation of BitREME
investment properties, EEy B
net of Mainland China nEHEAE
land appreciation tax TR ER - - 323,785 - 323,785 =
Proposed dividends BERE
— interim dividend —HHE S - - - = = 10,000
~ final dividend ~RERE - - - - - 30,000
Dividends paid BERRE - - - - (60,000)
Transfer from retained profit ~ & & B{REE T = 5,291 = = 5,291 =
Translation adjustments ERAE - - - 970 970 -
As at 31st December, 2000 ~ —TTTF
+ZRA=+-8 617,692 23,382 748,342 700 1,390,116 30,000
As at 1st January, 2001 “ZT-%—-R—H
- as previously reported - EFEE 617,692 23,382 748,342 700 1,390,116 -
~ prior year adjustment -BREFERE
(see Note 2.b) (RHFF2b) - - = = = 30,000
As restated 5l 617,692 23,382 748,342 700 1,390,116 30,000
Exercise of share options TR BRE
(see Note 32) (5ME32) 1,160 - - - 1,160 -
Share issuance expenses RAETER (3) - - - 3) -
Surplus on revaluation of EERENR
investment properties, EE7 B
net of Mainland China nBEEAE
land appreciation tax THEER - - 10,524 - 10,524 -
Proposed dividends BERE
~ interim dividend —HRS - - - - - 10,010
~ final dividend - REBRE - - - - - 20,040
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - (40,010)
Transfer from retained profit &8 5 {R 85 7 = 7,342 = = 7,342 -
Translation adjustments EARE = = = 5,799 5,799 =
As at 31st December, 2001 “TT-F
“R=+-H 618,849 30,724 758,866 0,499 1,414,938 20,040
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34. RESERVES AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS (Continued) 3. HEREZERE (F)

Investment
property Cumulative
General revaluation translation Proposed
Share premium reserve fund reserve adjustments Total  dividends
-k RENX 2%
ROEE REEE EMARE ENNRE it BERRE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T T T T T

COMPANY /N
As at Tst January, 2001 -

- as previously restated - EFEE 617,692 - - - 617,69 -
- prior year adjustment -BEEERE
(see Note 2.b) (RLH5ELD) - - - - - 50,000
As restated 4] 617,692 - - - 617,692 50,000
Proposed dividends BERE
— interim dividend — R E = - - = = 10,000
~ final dividend - RAKE - - - - - 30,000
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - (60,000)
As at 31st December, 2000 —ZZETE
+ZBZ+-8 617,69 - - - 617,69 30,000
As at 1st January, 2001 “EZ2-%5—f-H
- as previously restated -EERR 617,692 - - - 617,692 -
~ prior year adjustment -BREFERE
(see Note 2.b) (RLH5E2.D) - - - - - 30,000
As restated 3l 617,692 - - - 617,692 30,000
Exercise of share options TR BHRE
(see Note 32) (R M&E32) 1,160 - - - 1,160 -
Share issuance expenses ROETER (3) - - - 3) -
Proposed dividends BERE
— interim dividend — R E - - - = = 10,010
~ final dividend - RAKE - - - - - 20,040
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - - (40,010)
As at 31st December, 2001 —T%-

[Ty

+ZRA=+-H 618,849

|

I

|
(<
k=)
o)
=
©

20,040
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RESERVES AND PROPOSED DIVIDENDS (Continued)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a
portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by
their respective boards of directors. The general
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year losses
or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst
the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for
the development of business operations. During the
year ended 31st December, 2001, the boards of
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China appropriated approximately $7,342,000 (2000
- $5,291,000) to the general reserve fund and
determined not to make any appropriation to the

enterprise expansion fund.

3. FEREZERE (8)

RBHBAREERETR RARRAH
RERY REE 2B AR ARE
migaEN (REHEEFERBHIRER) T
H—HBHE—REFBESREEER
E2 WEXTDATEEFEBEE-—R
FEECATAEREBEFEEEBN
FREEITAR meEREEESAIHA
EBRREB - RNBE-_TT—F+_A4
=+ —BILFE ARARZHEKBER
BRARIZESERINAL7,342,0007T
(ZZTZTZF—5,291,00070) & — &
BEERAETERFEZLERRER

S
i e

&P
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 35. MEBERERMT
STATEMENT
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net a. BRBAVENEENKELEER
cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities ZBEE ORb) mAFRE 2 A
is as follows: Nk
2001 2000
—EE—F —EETHF
$7000 $’000
T Tt
Profit before taxation B 54 B 42 215,880 240,383
Interest income B U A (4,288) (7,939)
Interest expense MEZH 5,938 698
Share of profit of a jointly 6 L RHE
controlled entity =yl (12,584) -
Depreciation of properties
and equipment MERRBINE 3,355 2,717
Loss on disposal of properties HEMERZREZ
and equipment B 38 —
Amortisation of goodwill 7 1,647 —
Loss on investment
in securities BHEIEAFE 2,591 1,563
(Increase) Decrease in properties AftREZERSD
under development for sale W2 (32 0) ek > (1,091,005) 265,323
Decrease (Increase) in completed AIEHEZBEEK
properties for sale MR A () 359,992 (388,199)
Decrease in accounts receivable JE L BR O 29,636 158,861
Increase in prepayments, deposits ~ TEfTFIE & & R HAM
and other current assets B & E N (82,399) (53,763)
Increase (Decrease) in JE 15 BR 2K 18
accounts payable OB ) 4,833 (40,151)
Increase (Decrease) in land At EES
premium payable #n O ) 153,302 (143,955)
Increase in deferred income i JE W A S8 N 198,972 =
Increase in accruals ERERREM
and other payables JE& 1<F 3% 38 3 N 87,624 17,030
(Decrease) Increase in Mainland JE A5 A B R
China business tax payable O 4> & hn (24,713) 4,877
Net cash (outflow) inflow RELEEB 2 RS
from operating activities () mAEzE (151,181) 57,445
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)

b.

35.

ReERERERME (B)

Analysis of changes in financing is as follows: b. FHEFECREZHHMMOT:
Dueto  Dueto
Share capital Dueto ajointly ultimate
and share Short-term Long-term ~ Dueto  related controlled holding ~ Minority
premium bank loans bank loans ~ directors companies enfity company interests  Total
Eff-8  Ef
Bik  RE  RE  Ef EABE HREW BRER  JH
ReRE H6E% BGER ERRA L9RE EMRE ORRE RRRE A
§000  §000 000 000  $'000  §'000  $00  §000  $'000
fr It T fr fr T fTr fr T
As at Tst January, 2000 ZE3%E-F-H 717,692 324113 224298 4526 53,193 - - 55,726 1,379,548
New short-term bank loans FREHEAER - 550,936 = = = = = - 550,936
Repayment of shortterm bank loans B RERTER - (4113 - - - - - - (4113)
New long-term bank loans TRRARAER = - 157,009 - - - - - 157,009
Decrease in amounts due to directors ~ ERESAERY - - (1,502) = = = (1,502)
Increase in amounts due to ERBEAT
related companies SUBEN = = = Y = = VLS
Capital contrbutions from WEADSERE
minority shareholders of FAEg
subsidiaies (see Note 35.0) (RHE35.0) - - - - - - =AM 111831
Share of loss by minority WEAR)ERE
shareholders of subsidiaries Bk B - = = = = = - (6,676)  (6,676)
Dividends paid to minority ERNEAR &
shareholders of subsidiaries REkE - - - - - - - (4266)  (4266)
As at 31st December, 2000 ERTETCRCE-B 77690 550936 381307 304 57430 - - 156,615 1,667,004
lsue of shares upon exercise of RfkERERA
share options (see Note 32) R (RHaEs) 1,360 - - - - - - - 1300
Share issuance expenses R & ER 6) - - - - - - - 6)
New short-term bank loans TREHEAER - 623,009 = = = = = - 623,009
Repayment of shortterm bank loans B EEHTER - (0462) - - - - - - (422402)
New long-term bank loans TERERIER = 588,774 = = = = 588,774
Repayment of long-term benk loans ~~ EEREHIER - - 323,166 - - - - - (323,166)
Decrease in amounts due to directors B EERER - - - (1462) = = = - (1462
Increase in amounts due to ERBEAT
related companies SEEN = = = -8 = = - 18779
Increase in amount due to ER R
2 jointly contolled entity BRUREN - - - - SR AL - SR ALY
Increase in amount due to ultimate EREAERAT
holding company FEEN - - - - - - 20000 - 20000
Captal contrbutions from minority WEAT S BER
shareholders of subsidiaries REFH - - - = = - - 1907 19,
Share of profit by minority WEAD)ARE
shareholders of subsidiaries B 257 - - - = = = S ¥ Y /It
As at 31st December, 2001 ZES-ETCRIE-B 719049 751483 646915 1562 76209 67,189 20000 179810 2,482,217
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36.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

C.

Non-cash transaction:

During the year ended 31st December, 2000,
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary made
capital contributions of approximately
$106,248,000 in the form of construction
expenditures incurred by the minority
shareholder in respect of the Group’s properties
under development. There was no capital
contribution in the form of construction
expenditures from minority shareholders during
the year ended 31st December, 2001.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents represent other cash
and bank deposits amounting to approximately
$363,873,000 (2000 — $290,363,000) as at
31st December, 2001.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group operates predominantly in one

geographical area - Guangzhou, Guangdong

Province, Mainland China and in three business

segments — property development, property

investment and property management.
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RERERERME (B)

c. FAEXRH

RBE-_TTTEFF+_A=+—
HIEFERN —&BHBAR &R
RAERAEE 2 BEDYEM
SN2 EER T #106,248,000
T AEBRZNBARZEFE R
BE-_ZTT-—F+-H=+—H
HFE AEENBRARZ DK
RN EAREEREZFE-

d ReFReFEHER

ReRkBEEFEBEEENR_ZZT
—F+ZA=1+—RHEBEY
363,873,000t (Z T T F —
290,363,0007T) 2 E IR & KRR
T

DTRER
AEBFERN—(EME - BIP B KRR

REBMEEXH AA=ZEXH%D
BAMERER REREE-
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 36. pHEER ()

BEGIRE D 2 AKEEADNT

Analysis of the Group’s results by business segment

is as follows: A
2001 2000
—EB—F —TETHF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Turnover =3
— Property development —MEER 1,143,381 1,187,056
— Property investment —MERE 2,896 4,762
— Property management —MEERE 24,594 6,560
1,170,871 1,198,378
Profit (Loss) attributable to shareholders % 52 F& {5 % Fl| (E548)
— Property development —MEER 125,658 160,044
— Property investment —MEKRE 1,746 2,871
— Property management —MEERE (6,439) (2,051)
120,965 160,864
Depreciation and amortisation & N i
— Property development —MEER 4,667 2,627
— Property management —YMRER 335 90
5,002 2.717
Capital expenditures BARRAX
— Property development —MEER 10,513 2,664
— Property investment —MEKRE 430,873 194,370
— Property management —MEERE 894 1,311
442,280 198,345
Assets BE
— Property development —MEER 3,162,168 2,476,981
— Property investment —MEKRE 2,426,940 1,981,032
— Property management —MEERE 37,421 25,545
5,626,529 4,483,558
Liabilities Af8
— Property development —MEER 2,593,540 1,654,404
— Property investment —MERE 553,416 488,691
— Property management —MEERE 45,879 28,599
3,192,835 2,171,694
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36. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 36. 7EER (&)
No segment information by location of assets is ENAEEMABEEDLN P BEARE
presented as substantially all of the Group’s assets BREBEM # EIRE EMEMmE 5
are located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, DEEH -THRAEEZMEREFY
Mainland China. No analysis of turnover by location R BEREEREBEM M EEE
of customers is presented as all of the Group’s FrREmE ERBETIN-
customers are located in Guangzhou, Guangdong
Province, Mainland China.
37. COMMITMENTS 37. A
a. Capital commitments a. BREE
The Group had the following capital REBRRUBHREABEZE
commitments which are not provided in the RAFEMT:
financial statements:
Consolidated Company
e NN
2001 2000 2001 2000
—E%-F —EBTETF ZEE-F —ZTETE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T

Property construction 25

costs IRER
- Authorised and -ERER
contracted for EEHED) 2,071,648 202,213 = =
- Authorised but —-EERER
not contracted for RETH 7,894,023 1,682,882 = =
Capital contributions R —E %R
to a jointly BHER
controlled entity ZERHE
~ Authorised and -EERER
contracted for EEES) 257,857 257,857 = =

10,223,528 2,142,952 - -
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37. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. &k (&)
b. Operating lease commitments b. RKEMENEE
The Group has operating lease commitments REERZNHRE_ZTT=F
in respect of premises under various non- TR WHEBBEEYEZ T HHE
cancellable operating lease agreements KREBHMHRAE FHKLEHED
extending to October 2003 of approximately AYEHI 14,345,000 (=TT
$14,345,000 (2000 - $348,000). The % —348,0007T) WL Fih sk T A
commitments payable under these agreements 2 AT MT

are analysed as follows:

2001 2000
—EE2-F —TEETF
$’000 $’000
Fr TT
Amounts payable THIEAREN 2 RE
— within one year - —FRA 3,041 298
— within two to five years - ZE1FR 11,304 50
14,345 348
The commitments payable within the next ARARE+T @Az E&ED
twelve months are analysed as follows: MEAT
2001 2000
—EE2-F —TEETF
$’000 $/000
Fr TT
Leases PN 51 ER ) JE o 2
expiring HA BN 2 R
— within one year - —FRX 150 180
— within two to five years - ZZhER 2,891 118
3,041 298




38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Outward Expanse Investment Limited
(“Outward”), a wholly-owned subsidiary, and
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate
Limited (“GZQREL"), a jointly controlled entity
in which the Group has an equity interest,
were named as “third parties” in an appeal to
the Superior People’s Court of Guangdong
Province initiated by Guangzhou Hailongwang
Investment Company Limited (“the Plaintiff”),
an independent third party, against Guangzhou
Commission of Foreign Trade and Economic
Cooperation (“GZCOFTEC”). The Plaintiff
claims, inter alia, that it has the right to invest
in GZQREL and that GZCOFTEC has erred in
its decision not to cancel the registration of

GZQREL at the request of the Plaintiff.

GZQREL is a contractual joint venture
incorporated in Mainland China for the
development of properties located in Haizhu
District Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
Mainland China. Outward is a shareholder of
GZQREL whilst the other shareholders are
Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Company and
Guangzhou Shanlian Hua Qiao Real Estate
Limited.

All of the Plaintiff’s claims against GZCOFTEC
have been rejected by the Superior People’s
Court of Guangdong Province. The Group was
advised by its Mainland China legal advisers
that the Plaintiff’s chances of reversing the
decision of the Superior Court on appeal are
not high, and even in the unlikely event that
GZQREL'’s registration is cancelled as a result
of the Plaintiff’s appeal, the Group was likely
to recover from the relevant parties the cost of
its investment in GZQREL. Accordingly, no
provision has been made in the financial
statements in respect of the Group’s investment
in GZQREL amounting to approximately
$38,431,000 (2000 — $30,000,000).
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38. ARERE

a. R—FHEBIYE=FH — EMT
BEIREAR2A(IRE
A BERBEMNTHINEESR
5% EBg ([IIEER]) 2 FBAE
RE&HARERRLR L&FF-
—HE2ENMBAR — BRRE
BERAR ([EXR]) E—BAKE
BEAERAN R 2 KRZEHER
- BMKIBHEMERRA A
(MME#)) WEARIE=T]-R
EABRBBRERENRERES
MIMERZEARBERE AR EK
HUH 8 #8 2 B 50 M # 5 1F 1 88 3R
RTE e

& &P 2 — B 7E P B K BE R A 32
BERR CEFERUNRFEAX
PEEREEMNGHRE 2 ME-EX
REH2RR MEB2 EMBKRR
RERWIREER AR REM
“HMEREMERRAF-

REAMIMNEEIEHZREE 2
BHEREZa ARERK B AR
SEzHEEEBERERRAR
EANEBERERZRAEZH#E
AR BMEGBEZ ZRARE AR
E FRmMEEE AR ENRA A
RemA A T U E AL BN B
FEZIRE At B BHERP I
B ASEERBHIERED
38,431,000C (ZE T T F —
30,000,0007T ) {EE{a]
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 38. AAEE (&)
b. Other contingent liabilities not provided for b. HMAHERPBEHRRPELEE
in the financial statements are: ZHRABEMT:
Consolidated Company
ga RAH
2001 2000 2001 2000
—E%-F —ETEF —E8-F —ETEF
$’000 $'000 $000 $'000
7 7 7 7
Guarantees given RBEEREE
to banks for mortgage ~ MEZEXR
facilities granted RERBE
to the buyers of K R 1T
the Group’s properties  fEitl 2 1R 287,760 1,315,048 - -
Guarantee given to BRBEL
a bank for a bank alz RITE
loan of an associate ERRITIE
(see Note 3.h) 2 &
(RH5E3.0) 10,035 10,738 - -
Mainland China land REARKE LM
appreciation tax EEH
(see Note 7.c) (RHF7.c) 37,658 = = =
335,453 1,325,786 - =
39. PENSION SCHEMES 39. RIKE&TE
Since 1st December, 2000, the Group has arranged BE-_ZEETTF+_HF—HBHiiE ~N&EEE
for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory HEEREESLTHRE TR (18
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a VEATE Y THEMASRE BNk
defined contribution scheme managed by an HAELHE ([REBELHE]) B
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each MRSt E $EIET% 3 UEE)

of the Group (the employer) and its employees make

REREBARAFEAERIAMMA
E & BIRZ {E,\H&J\ZSO/OFU;Z#EIH’E
BRAHRF-EEXREEMECEAHEK
LR %1,0007T " % 51,0007 JA &
ZHFABEREMEE-

monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly
contributions of each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of $1,000 and

thereafter contributions are voluntary.



39.

40.

PENSION SCHEMES (Continued)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, all
retired employees of the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiaries are entitled to an annual pension equal
to their basic annual salaries upon retirement. The
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement
plan at a rate of approximately 18% of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-sponsored
retirement plan is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits

beyond the annual contributions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2001, the
aggregate amount of the employer contributions
made by the Group amounted to approximately
$1,375,000 (2000 — $620,000).

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31st December, 2001, the Group had banking
facilities of approximately $1,398,398,000 (2000 —
$932,243,000) for short-term and long-term bank
loans, which were fully utilised. These facilities were

secured by:

a. the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
$973,466,000 (2000 — $938,139,000) (see
Note 13);

b. the Group’s properties under development for
long-term
$67,713,000 (2000 — Nil) (See Note 14);

investment of approximately
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RkEsTE (&)

BRPBREZEZRRE ASEB T
TEAEMBARZMERKERS
FHERZEREREELA2EFHS
ZERE - AEEEE —EHBEKEL
ZEKRFE REREERFHFEH18%
ZHRAEH K- BI R E B) 2 RIKEH &
BEXNEREER 228 RKE -
tﬁﬁ% N AEBBRE-THER
BAREHERRENES-

Hz2_ZZ—F+_A=+—HIEF
E AEBEHZEETH/HRILO A
1,375,0007C (ZZEZEZFF — 620,000

N_TT— ¢+—H:+—EI’Z!KEI
ZHRITRMEARHRITERLRR
TEZ HE£%4/51,398,398,0007T

ZEETHF —932,243,0007T) o A E
EEHAAMBERITHRE - HEMERT
P FIEER:

a. BRE#EZ973,466,0007T (==&
Z T4 —938,139,0007T) ZI%E
Y (RMFE13)

b. #967,713,000c (ZEZEZF —
) CEIERBIEENZEREHRY

¥ (RHzE14)
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BANKING FACILITIES (Continued)

c. the Group’s land pending development of
approximately $80,803,000 (2000 — Nil) (see
Note 15);

d. the Group’s properties under development for
sale of approximately $222,798,000 (2000 —
$74,798,000) (see Note 21);

e. the Group’s completed properties for sale of
approximately $223,754,000 (2000 -
$128,697,000) (see Note 22); and

f.  the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
$85,221,000 (2000 — $40,000,000) (see Note
26).

In addition, the Group is required to comply with
certain financial covenants under certain bank
borrowings.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The following significant transactions took place
subsequent to 31st December, 2001:

a. In January 2002, the Group entered into
agreements with certain subsidiaries of
Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Limited, a
minority shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, to establish four sino-foreign
equity joint ventures in Mainland China (“the
Joint Ventures”) for the development of three
parcels of land located in Beijing, Mainland
China, and a parcel of land located in Tianjin,
Mainland China. Under the joint venture
agreements, the Group is required to contribute
70% of the registered capital of the Joint
Ventures, totalling RMB328,000,000
(equivalent to approximately $309,434,000),
and is entitled to share the profits and receive
a distribution of assets upon liquidation at the
same percentage. The Joint Ventures have
operating periods of 30 years commencing
from the respective dates of issue of the
business licenses, which are in the process of
application.

40. BITRE (&)

41.

c. XEBZFERLT WD
80,803,000 (—BEEZTE — M)
(RM&E15) ©

d. AEBEZAHEEZEREPYE
#7222,798,000C (ZEZEZF —
74,798,0007T) (B BHf#E21) °

e. AEBEZAIHEEZEERYME
#9223,754,0007C (—EZEZTF —
128,697,00070) (RMI:E22) i &

f.  A&EEZIRITFKA85,221,000
7T (ZZEZZ 4 —40,000,0007T)
(R M 5E26) °
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a. R-ZTETE_F—H AEEEARQ
AETHEBARZ —BLERRE
BRHKIKEBRAR ZETH
BRI M ek AP B R BER L
MIEFINRDEERE ([EED
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H-BREBEEELERE FNEBH
ENREAECHEIMER270%
A H AR#328,000,0007T (%
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REBE DD MhEFRREEE
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

In January 2002, the Group entered into an
agreement with a subsidiary of Guangdong
Zhujiang Investment Limited, a minority
shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, and other independent third parties
to establish Guangzhou Cuijing Real Estate
Limited (“GCREL”), a contractual joint venture
in Mainland China, for the development of a
parcel of land located in Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China. Under
the joint venture agreement, the Group is
required to contribute the entire registered
GCREL
RMB53,550,000 (equivalent to approximately
$50,519,000), and is entitled to share 97% of
the profits of GCREL and receive a distribution

capital of amounting to

of 97% of GCREL’s assets upon liquidation.
GCREL has an operating period of 20 years
commencing from the date of issue of the
business license, which is in the process of

application.

On 18th April, 2002, the Company’s directors
proposed a final dividend of 2 cents per share,
totalling approximately $20,040,000, in respect
of the year ended 31st December, 2001. The
proposed dividend is subject to approval by
the Company’s shareholders in the upcoming

annual general meeting.
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A#&%EE (&)
R-ZTEZ—F— A - AEBEEAR
AETHEBAR 2 —RLDERE

BRHKIKREGRAGDB T2 —
KMBARI REMBIE=FF]
M R RERY —REL
HEELERMNAEERERHE
ERRARI([EERE]) UER
— RN BRAREREREEMNZ
TH - RBEELERE AEE
RENESERSZEMEME
N BEARY53,550,0007T (48
£ #950,519,0007T) * T B HE D
EEERTZ97%m M R PRER
RENREERE ZI7%EE A
ERBZEEHBAKLERRE (R
TFREMNPFRE) HTHBER
BEI20%F -

RZZEZZFOA+NARB AR
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B R2L - REEHD
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Summary of Consolidated
Financial Information

CONSOLIDATED/COMBINED INCOME STATEMENTS &2 & &t &

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
—ANtFE —AANFE —ANNE ZTTTF —BE-F
$'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $000
Tt Tt T T T
(Note i)
(B3
Turnover L 482,465 1,303,332 1,328,513 1,198,378 |1,170,871
Cost of sales 3 & A AR (738,224) (768,515)  (829,788) | (782,664)
Gross profit EF 565,108 559,998 368,590 388,207
Selling and HERTS
marketing expenses HEEEM (70,468) (74,268)  (91,353) | (126,181)
General and —® R
administrative TH
expenses EA (23,705) (26,305) (44,095) (57,080)
Profit from operations R A 470,935 459,425 233,142 204,946
Interest income B U A 19,183 16,593 7,939 4,288
Interest expense FB X (4,922) (686) (698) (5,938)
Share of profit AEHR
of a jointly BHER
controlled entity i ) - - - 12,584
Profit before taxation B 7 A 4 A 198,181 485,196 475,332 240,383 215,880
Taxation BiTE (65,291)  (158,138) (162,857)  (86,195) (90,891)
Profit after taxation BB ERT
but before LHRR
minority interests T2 2 0k Al 132,890 327,058 312,475 154,188 124,989
Minority interests PR RER (13,336) (16,380) (23,564) 6,676 (4,024)
Profit attributable % 5 e A
to shareholders el 119,554 310,678 288,911 160,864 120,965
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CONSOLIDATED/COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS 42 & &t EEEER
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
—hANhtEE —ANNEFE —hWhhE —ZZTTF ZFE-F
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T Fr
(Note i and ii) (Note ii) (Note ii) (Note ii)
(Bt sEiERii) (Bt =Eii) (Mt =Eii) (KT &Eii)
Non-current assets FARBEE
Properties and equipment ¥ % R &% {& 8,987 12,237 13,235 14,493 22,507
Investment properties REYE - 364,000 865,000 1,673,000 |1,710,000
Properties under HIERBKRE
development for ZERT
long-term investment mER
and land pending FER
development T 100,259 472,703 675,714 530,741 805,996
Investment in associates N /NG
ZIRE 3,778 5,868 6,625 7,503 2,413
Investment in a jointly P — fid #£ Rl 42
controlled entity ERIKRE = = 29,961 30,000 38,431
Goodwill EES - - - - 6,587
Due from a director El—REERIE - - = = 1,000
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 113,024 854,808 1,590,535 2,255,737 |2,586,934
Current assets RBEE
Properties under AftHE 2
development for sale BRETYE 669,744 660,237 782,876 632,273 | 1,751,799
Completed properties AHHEZ
for sale BER = 15,890 316,799 719,429 369,536
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3% 171,673 448,603 465,664 306,803 277,167
Prepayments, deposits FENHIE &
and other current assets & REMR
HEE 21,032 22,942 20,622 74,385 156,784
Investment in securities EHFRE - - — 6,823 4,232
Due from related companies &4 8% 2 7]
B 47,036 53,738 5,997 406 5,983
Due from a jointly JE U — KA
controlled entity P B R RR - 66,074 130,880 157,339 -
Cash and bank deposits RERRTET 82,362 444,169 224,789 330,363 474,094
Total current assets mMBEEMLE 991,847 1,711,653 1,947,627 2,227,821 | 3,039,595
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CONSOLIDATED/COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS %24 & HEEERBR

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
—ANhtEE —AANE —hhhEGE ZTETF —BE-F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $’000
T T T T Fr
(Note i and ii) (Note ii) (Note ii) (Note ii)
(KT sEigRii) (Bt =Eii) (Bt =Eii) (Bt Eii)
Current liabilities hEBaE
Short-term bank loans RERTER (32,056)  (165,421) (324,113)  (550,936) | (751,483)
Long-term bank loans, RERITER
current portion B H - = - (228,223) | (164,283)
Accounts payable JE 5 BR X (114,614)  (164,077)  (183,162)  (143,011) | (147,844)
Land premium payable, JE A5 £ 3 1 3%
current portion T EHEH (167,931)  (204,662) (289,985)  (143,332) | (172,907)
Deferred income, ELEWA
current portion 52 HE D = = = = (140,083)
Accruals and other payables 812 & 3 L H
it FE 1 IR (114,490)  (147,213) (141,354)  (158,384) | (246,008)
Due to directors e & E IR (48,667) (6,631) (4,526) (3,024) (1,562)
Due to related companies  Ef B #E 2 A
RIA (122,843) (75,903) (53,193) (57,430) (76,209)
Due to a jointly e —Fa £ A
controlled entity BHIER 2 RE - - - = (87,189)
Due to ultimate JE {5 B SRR R
holding company NGIE S - - - - (20,000)
Taxation payable N (10,343) (17,677) (50,396)  (65,306) (45,357)
Total current liabilities mEERAE (610,944)  (781,584) (1,046,729) (1,349,646) |(1,852,925)
Net current assets mMBEEFE 380,903 930,069 900,898 878,175 | 1,186,670
Total assets less BEERRE
current liabilities afE 493,927 1,784,877 2,491,433 3,133,912 | 3,773,604
Non-current liabilities E¥RBEE
Long-term bank loans, RERTER
non-current portion EREE D = = (224,298)  (153,084) | (482,632)
Land premium payable, BT HES
non-current portion FEREE 1D (182,318) (98,970) = (2,698) | (126,425)
Deferred income, FELEWA
non-current portion JERE HEf 1D - = = = (58,889)
Deferred taxation EEFIE (82,389)  (300,227) (481,779)  (666,266) | (671,964)
Total non-current liabilities FERBEAELE  (264,707)  (399,197) (706,077)  (822,048) ((1,339,910)
Minority interests SHRRER (24,109) (38,402) (55,726)  (156,615) | (179,810)
Net assets BESFE 205,111 1,347,278 1,729,630 2,155,249 | 2,253,884
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CONSOLIDATED/COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS %24 &8 EEE X
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
—AAtE —AANE —AhhE —ZTTTF —EET-F
$/000 $000 $000 $'000 $’000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

(Note i and ii) (Note ii) (Note ii) (Note ii)
(B FEifRii) (Bt i) (Bt i) (R &Eii)

Represented by- R&-

Share capital [N 75,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,200

Reserves ] 10,557 817,046 1,060,070 1,390,116 1,414,938

Retained profit R B % Fl 119,554 310,232 519,560 635,133 718,706

Proposed dividends BEERE - 120,000 50,000 30,000 20,040

Shareholders’ equity % R4 205,111 1,347,278 1,729,630 2,155,249 | 2,253,884

Notes: Bt 5

i The combined financial statements of the Group as at and for the year i AEERRBZE-—NANtEtETZR=+—H
ended 31st December, 1997 were extracted from the Company’s IFFEZAMMBRRDBEE - ANANFR
prospectus dated 18th May, 1998 and were prepared on the assumption ATNBRIBEZARBDERERA WRAK
that the current structure of the Group was in existence throughout the B REEBEZSFEN—EFELRR
year. me-

ii. Certain of the comparative figures as at and for the year ended 31st ii. REBE-—ANEE —AANF - —AAN
December, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 have been adjusted to FRZETTFF+_A=+—HILFEZET
incorporate the effect of the adoption of new accounting standards HBREFERNEBEZE_TT—F+_A=1+—
during the year ended 31st December, 2001, details of which were set ALEFEFEMzHErEZmMELARE g

out in Note 2.b to the accompanying financial statements. FHERIF IS BN REM 2 B MR M eE2.b
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General LZRERERAREERRAR ([ARA)
Meeting of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the EANR—_ZEE_FRAA-_+tRH(EH—)
“Company”) will be held at Salon I, The Ritz-Carlton, 3 FFARB=1+2REPRTHETIRER
Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong on 27th May, 2002 BEEER _RE|TRRBEFARE HELAR
(Monday) at 9:30 a.m. for the following purposes: BTRHERE:
1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated — ABAE_ZET-F+__A=t—HLt

financial statements of the Company and its FEARAREWNB AR Z REZEE

subsidiaries and the reports of the directors and HHHmR EFEMERRBARSE -

auditors for the year ended 31st December, 2001.

2. To re-elect retiring directors and to authorise the T BEEREEERREEESETEEH
board of directors to fix the directors’ remuneration. Fo

3. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31st = EMKEBRE_TT—F+_A=1—
December, 2001. HIFFERBHESE-

4. To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of M- ERZHMITEEEESETEME-

directors to fix their remuneration.
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5. As special business to consider and, if thought fit,
pass with or without modifications, the following

resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

A. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c), the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the
Company or securities convertible into such
shares or warrants or similar rights to
subscribe for any shares in the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which might require the
exercise of such power be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorise
the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which would or
might require the exercise of such power

after the end of the Relevant Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than
pursuant to the shares of the Company

issued as a result of a Rights Issue (as

123

I ERFRISEHR ZRAEMBEBNINE

BRFR (TwEETEST) :
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BREBRES AR M R
%) HEARTSELER
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hereinafter defined) or pursuant to the 2 BIRES B LU LR
exercise of options under the Share Option BARNBMAIMIBHIARE
Scheme or similar arrangement, or any scrip AR B B2 AR5 PR
dividend or similar arrangement providing % 2 F kAR AR B 2 1] A
for the allotment of shares of the Company A BE B3 8 UL % B 1 B
in lieu of the whole or part of the dividend EERIN) - Lt st ETRA
on the shares of the Company in AL SR RIR - R

accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws,
shall not exceed 20 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of passing of this Resolution and the

said approval shall be limited accordingly;

and
(d) for the purposes of this Resolution: (T) MR ABEM S
“Relevant Period” means the period from the [ERAHE | EHBERNRERZ
date of passing of this Resolution until HETIZ&FHHIEZHE:

whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual (i) AARITEKRERFEK
general meeting of the Company; BERE:

(i) the expiration of the period within (i) BARAMAASKEME
which the next annual general meeting REBREVRERR
of the Company is required by the Bye- AIABITTRERREBESF
laws of the Company or any applicable A& HABR fE B - 3k

laws of Bermuda to be held; or

(iii) revocation or variation of the authority (i) AR ERBRE RS
given under this Resolution by ordinary FUAEBRE R
resolution of the shareholders of the BRI ARZBR 2 IR ER-

Company in general meeting.
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“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open
for a period fixed by the directors of the
Company to holders of shares of the
Company on the register on a fixed record
date in proportion to their holdings of such
shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of, any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange in any territory

outside Hong Kong).”

B. “THAT:

(@)

subject to paragraph (b), the exercise by
the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period of all the powers of the
Company to repurchase its own shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the securities of
the Company may be listed and recognised
by the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Stock Exchange for this purpose,
subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the
Company may be listed as amended from
time to time, be and is hereby generally

and unconditionally approved;
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(b)
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the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to the approval
mentioned in paragraph (a) during the
Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per
cent of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue
on the date of passing of this Resolution
and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly; and

the expression “Relevant Period” shall for
the purposes of this Resolution have the
same meaning as assigned to it under

Ordinary Resolution 5.A. (d) of this notice.”

C. “THAT conditional upon Resolutions 5.A. and

5.B. above being passed, the aggregate nominal

amount of shares in the capital of the Company

which are repurchased by the Company under

the authority granted to the directors as

mentioned in Resolution 5.B. above shall be

added to the aggregate nominal amount of share

capital that may be allotted or agreed

conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted

(2) ArEkigE ExX () B At
ER A RHIEEE AR QR
MHEALABEINSBELART
BERNAZRZBEHEHTK
AREEAD 2+ M it
ETMAALBELR: &

(R RN RBRME [HEB
MlEFRAREAEHRZA
CREFDA(T) BERR
R T 2 MEMER -

(BB TABLMERAREABE
REER AQRRE LM ERBIE
RBRMR TEE 2 REBRK
REIRG 2 MEAREEIMAKRRF
EERBERAAERERAEZE K
BERUGSEGRERBRE ZREE
EE EARAFED 2 RAEET



by the directors of the Company pursuant to
Resolution 5.A. provided that the amount of
share capital repurchased by the Company shall
not exceed 10 per cent of the total nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue on the date of this Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
Mok Wai Kun, Barbara

Secretary

Hong Kong, 18th April, 2002

Principal office:

19th Floor, Wyndham Place
40-44 Wyndham Street
Central

Hong Kong

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above notice is entitled to appoint
one or more proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the
power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of
that power of attorney or other authority, must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company at
19th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before

the time appointed for holding the said meeting.
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A form of proxy for the meeting will be enclosed

with the annual report.

The register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 17th May, 2002 to Monday,
27th May, 2002, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for the final dividend to be
approved at the meeting and the right to attend
and vote at the meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Central Registration Hong Kong Limited, Shops
1712-1716, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Thursday, 16th May, 2002.

With reference to the Ordinary Resolutions sought
in items 5.A. and 5.B. of this notice, the directors
wish to state that they have no immediate plans to
issue any new shares or to repurchase any existing
shares of the Company. The explanatory statement
required by the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
in connection with the repurchase mandate will be
despatched to shareholders together with the annual

report.
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HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
website: http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/hopson

FORM OF PROXY FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (or any adjournment thereof)

1 /WelNote 1)

of

being the registered holder(s) of(Note2) shares of HK$0.10 each
in the capital of the abovenamed company (the “Company”) HEREBY APPOINT®ete3) the Chairman of the meeting

or

of

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the said meeting of the Company to be held at
Salon Il, The Ritz-Carlton, 3 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong on 27th May, 2002 (Monday) at 9:30 a.m. (or at
any adjournment thereof) in respect of the resolutions set out in the notice convening the said meeting as hereunder
indicated, and, if no such indication is given, as my/our proxy thinks fit.

For(Note 4) Aga| nst(Note 4)
1.| To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the
reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31st December, 2001.
2.| A. Tore-elect Mr. Cheung Fong Wing as director.
B. Tore-elect Mr. Au Yeung Fu, Anthony as director.
C. To authorise the board of directors to fix the remuneration of the directors.
3. | Todeclare afinal dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2001.
4. | To re-appoint Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co. as auditors and to authorise the
board of directors to fix their remuneration.
5.1 A. Togrant ageneral mandate to the directors to allot shares.
B. To grant a general mandate to the directors to repurchase the Company’s
own shares.
C. To add the nominal amount of the shares repurchased under resolution
5.B. to the mandate granted to the directors under resolution 5.A.

Datedthis____ dayof ____ 2002. Signature(s)Mete 5

Notes:

1. Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

2. Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to
relate to all the shares in the capital of the Company registered in your name(s).

3. If any proxy other than the Chairman of the meeting is preferred, delete the words “the Chairman of the meeting or” and
insert the name and address of the proxy desired in the space provided. The proxy need not be a member of the Company but
must attend the meeting in person to represent you. ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS FORM OF PROXY MUST BE
INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.

4. IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK IN THE BOX MARKED “FOR”. IF
YOU WISH TO VOTE AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, TICK IN THE BOX MARKED “AGAINST”. Failure to tick a box
will entitle your proxy to cast your vote at his discretion. Your proxy will also be entitled to vote at his discretion on any
resolution properly put to the meeting other than those referred to in the notice convening the meeting.

5. This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of a corporation, must
either be executed under its common seal or under the hand of any officer or attorney or other person duly authorised.

6. Where there are joint registered holders of any share(s), any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or
by proxy, in respect of such share(s) as if he were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders is present
at the meeting, personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first on the register in
respect of such share(s) shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

7. To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a

notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or other authority, must be deposited at the principal office of the
Company at 19th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding the meeting.
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HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(AFFREEMRLZZARAE)
# zk : http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/hopson
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